
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

MAY 9, 2011 
CONVENING AT 8:30 P.M. 

STARTING TIME CHANGED BY COUNCIL RESOLUTION #2011-04-077 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted By 
The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

TO: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 



 

 

 

 
VISION: 
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an 
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 
 
GOALS: 
Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 
 Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
 Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
 Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
 Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
 
Provide effective and efficient local government 
 Demonstrate excellence in community services 
 Maintain fiscally sustainable government 
 Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
 Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
 Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
 
Build a sense of community 
 Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
 Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
 Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
 Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
 Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
 
Attract and retain business investment 
 Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
 Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
 Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
 Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
 Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 

 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS 
Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011 

 



 

 

 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
May 9, 2011 – 8:30 PM 

Council Chambers 
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: Pastor Dan Lewis of Troy Christian Chapel 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 No Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 No Public Hearings 1 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 1 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 2 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

H-1  No Postponed Items 2 



 

 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 2 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled 2 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 2 

I-3 Request for Closed Session: 2 

I-4 Interlocal Agreement with the City of Sterling Heights and US Department of 
Homeland Security – ICE for Use of Gun Range 3 

I-5 Troy City Code Chapter 93 Amendments - Correction 3 

I-6 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Community Center 
Catering 4 

I-7 Rescind Bid Award/Re-Award Contract – Aggregates 5 

I-8 Rescind Bid Award/Re-Award Contract - Custodial Supplies 5 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 6 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 6 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 6 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 6 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 6 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 6 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders - Asphalt ................... 6 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for 

Membership Dues – Michigan Municipal League (MML) ...................................... 7 

J-5 Bid Waiver: Expansion of Vehicle Exhaust Collection Systems at Fire Stations 3 
and 4 7 



 

 

J-6 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main from First 
Industrial Development Services, Inc. – Sidwell #88-20-35-201-067 7 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 8 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 8 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): None Submitted 8 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 8 

L-1  Council Referrals: 8 

a) Proposed Millage Questions - Requested by Mayor Schilling .............................. 8 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 9 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 9 

N. REPORTS 9 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 9 

a) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust-Final-January 12, 2011 ..................... 9 
b) Traffic Committee-Final-January 19, 2011 ........................................................... 9 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Final-March 9, 2011 ............. 9 
d) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-March 14, 2011 ............................................... 9 
e) Board of Zoning Appeals-Draft-March 15, 2011 ................................................... 9 
f) Planning Commission-Final-March 22, 2011 ........................................................ 9 
g) Planning Commission-Draft-April 12, 2011 .......................................................... 9 
h) Planning Commission-Final-April 12, 2011 .......................................................... 9 

N-2 Department Reports: 9 

a) March 31, 2011 – Quarterly Financial Report ....................................................... 9 
b) RCOC Snow and Ice Control Contract Expense Report 5/01/2011 ..................... 9 
c) 2010 Fire Department Annual Report ................................................................... 9 
d) 2011 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report ............................................. 9 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation: 9 

a) No Letter and Card of Appreciation Submitted ..................................................... 9 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 10 



 

 

a) Oakland County – Resolution Adopting the Department of Management and 
Budget 2011 Equalization Report ....................................................................... 10 

N-5  David Smith v. Stopczynski 10 

O. STUDY ITEMS 10 

O-1  No Study Items Presented 10 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 10 

P-1  Troy v Safeway Acquisition Company  and Strategy for Labor Negotiations  10 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 10 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 10 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 11 

Monday, May 16, 2011 Regular Meeting ............................................................... 11 
Monday, June 6, 2011 Regular Meeting ................................................................ 11 
Monday, June 20, 2011 Regular Meeting .............................................................. 11 
Monday, July 11, 2011 Regular Meeting ............................................................... 11 
Monday, July 25, 2011 Regular Meeting ............................................................... 11 
Monday, August 8, 2011 Regular Meeting ............................................................ 11 
Monday, August 22, 2011 Regular Meeting .......................................................... 11 
Monday, August 29, 2011 Regular Meeting .......................................................... 11 
Monday, September 12, 2011 Regular Meeting .................................................... 11 
Monday, September 26, 2011 Regular Meeting .................................................... 11 
Monday, October 3, 2011 Regular Meeting ........................................................... 11 
Monday, October 17, 2011 Regular Meeting ......................................................... 11 
Monday, November 14, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 11 
Monday, November 21, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 11 
Monday, November 28, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 11 
Monday, December 5, 2011 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 11 
Monday, December 19, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 11 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION: Pastor Dan Lewis of Troy Christian Chapel 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of                at 
the Regular City Council Meeting of May 9, 2011 due to                     . 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 No Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – Members of 
the Public and Visitors: 
 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 

the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

(5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any other item 
as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a m ajority of the City Council 
members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a S pecial Meeting for Agenda items that are related to 
topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may be 
limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up t o speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session:  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL meet in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL15.268 (e) Pending Litigation: Troy v. Safeway Acquisition Company, and as permitted by 
MCL 15.268 (c) Strategy for Labor Negotiations. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2011 
 

- 3 - 

I-4 Interlocal Agreement with the City of Sterling Heights and US Department of 
Homeland Security – ICE for Use of Gun Range 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 

a) Agreement for Use of Gun Range – City of Sterling Heights 
  

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Service Agreement 
between the City of Troy and the City of Sterling Heights for the use of the City’s gun range; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk and 
Mayor to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes 
of this meeting. 
 

b)  Agreement for Use of Gun Range – US Department of Homeland Security – ICE  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Service Agreement 
between the City of Troy and the US Department of Homeland Security – ICE for the use of the 
City’s gun range; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk and 
Mayor to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes 
of this meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-5 Troy City Code Chapter 93 Amendments - Correction 
 
A. RESOLUTION TO RESCIND PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS City Council Resolution #2011-04-078, 
Amendments to Troy City Code Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, Based Upon 2009 International 
Fire Code and 2009 M ichigan Building Code, adopted by the Troy City Council at the Regular 
City Council meeting on April 18, 2011, as follows: 
 

I-4 Amendments to Troy City Code Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, Based Upon 2009 
International Fire Code and 2009 Michigan Building Code 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2011 
 

- 4 - 

Resolution #2011-04-078 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, 
of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Troy, as amended, as recommended by City 
Management; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
B. RESOLUTION TO AMEND CHAPTER 93 OF THE TROY CITY CODE: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, of the Code 
of Ordinances of the City of Troy, as amended, as recommended by City Management City 
Council Action Report dated May 3, 2011; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-6 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Community Center 

Catering 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide catering 
services at the Troy Community Center for three (3) years with an opt ion to renew for three 
additional years to Encore Catering of Troy, MI, the caterer with the highest score and rate of 
return, as a result of a best value process which the Troy City Council determines to be in the 
public interest at a return schedule of 15% of gross receipts less Michigan sales tax, or 
$12,000.00 minimum guarantee per year, whichever is greater, expiring May 9, 2014. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon caterer submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates, the ability 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2011 
 

- 5 - 

to qualify as the holder of the City’s liquor license and all other specified requirements; and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the agreement when in acceptable form. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-7 Rescind Bid Award/Re-Award Contract – Aggregates 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, On April 18, 2011, contracts for one-year requirements of Aggregate Material with 
an option to renew for one (1) additional year was awarded to various low bidders (Resolution 
#2011-04-085-J4b); and 
 
WHEREAS, After the award of contract, Richmond Transport Inc. withdrew their bid for 6A Slag 
due to a calculation error;   
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS with 
prejudice the contract for one-year requirements of 6A Slag with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional year from Richmond Transport Inc. and hereby RE-AWARDS the contract to the next 
lowest bidder, B&W Landscape Supply of Clinton Township, MI at $13.23 per ton, as contained 
on the bid tabulation opened March 22, 2011. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That all other items contained in resolution 2011-04-085-J4b 
REMAIN in full force and effect as originally stipulated. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-8 Rescind Bid Award/Re-Award Contract - Custodial Supplies 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, On March 28, 2011, a contract for one-year requirements of Custodial Supplies 
was awarded to the lowest acceptable bidder, Central Poly Corporation of Linden, NJ 
(Resolution # 2011-03-064-J4e); and 
 
WHEREAS, Central Poly Corporation has declined the consideration for award due to their 
choice not to meet insurance requirements; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE I T RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS with 
prejudice the contract for one-year requirements of Custodial Supplies from Central Poly 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2011 
 

- 6 - 

Corporation and her eby RE-AWARDS the contract to the next lowest total bidder, Empire 
Equipment and Supply Co. of Detroit, MI, for an es timated total cost of $16,134.00 at unit 
prices contained in the bid tabulation opened F ebruary 23, 2011, a c opy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring March 31, 2012. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)  ______________      , which SHALL BE 
CONSIDERED after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 

a. Regular City Council Meeting of April 18, 2011 
a. Special City Council Meeting of April 25, 2011 
b. Special City Council Meeting of May 2, 2011 

 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders - Asphalt 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2011 
 

- 7 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS one-year contracts to provide asphalt 
paving materials-hot patch with an opt ion to renew for one ( 1) additional year to the low 
bidders, Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. of Troy, for Items 1-5 and I tem 7, asphalt paving 
materials; and Cadillac Asphalt LLC of Shelby Township for Item 6, bulk tack coat for an 
estimated total cost of $82,900.00 and $2,500.00 respectively, at unit prices contained in the 
bid tabulation opened A pril 19, 2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring December 31, 2011. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues – Michigan Municipal League (MML) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES payment for annual membership 
dues to the Michigan Municipal League, for the time period of May 1, 2011 through April 30, 
2012, in the amount of $11,301.00. 
 
J-5 Bid Waiver: Expansion of Vehicle Exhaust Collection Systems at Fire Stations 3 

and 4 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      
 
WHEREAS, Hastings Air Energy Control is the authorized dealer and sole provider in Michigan 
to service and install Plymovent equipment; and 
 
WHEREAS, MIOSHA standards require that firefighter exposure to diesel exhaust emissions 
within enclosed facilities be controlled; and 
 
WHEREAS, Due to operational requirements of the Fire Department, fire apparatus have been 
redeployed from one fire station to another prompting the need t o expand the exhaust 
collection systems at Fire stations 3 and 4;    
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DEEMS it to be in the City’s 
best interest to WAIVE formal bidding procedures and AUTHORIZES the purchase of materials 
and labor to expand the Plymovent vehicle exhaust system at Fire stations 3 and 4 from 
Hastings Air Energy Control, as detailed in Appendix 1, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting, for an estimated total cost of $11,600.00. 
 
J-6 Request for Acceptance of a P ermanent Easement for Water Main from First 

Industrial Development Services, Inc. – Sidwell #88-20-35-201-067 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05-      



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2011 
 

- 8 - 

 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for water 
main, for a consideration amount of One Dollar ($1.00), from First American Development 
Services, Inc., owners of the property having Sidwell #88-20-35-201-067, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 
 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

L-1  Council Referrals: 
 
a) Proposed Millage Questions - Requested by Mayor Schilling 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES for placement on the ___________, 
2011 Election, the following ballot questions:  
 
a) Approval of City of Troy Public Library Dedicated General Operation Millage Proposal as 

Requested by Mayor Schilling 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL WOULD BE AUTHORIZED TO LEVY UP TO ___ MILLS WITH 
THE SUCCESSFUL PASSAGE OF THE FOLLOWING QUESTION: 

 
Shall the City of Troy levy new additional millage of up to ___ mills against 
all taxable property for a ____-year period of time, 2011 through _____, for 
public library general operating purposes? ___ mills are equal to $_____ on 
each $1,000.00 of taxable value. If approved, the additional millage levied 
will raise approximately $_____________ the first year it is levied. The 
millage will be levied on the Winter Tax Bill Annually. 
 
Yes ____ No ______ 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2011 
 

- 9 - 

b) Approval of City of Troy Road Maintenance and Snow Plowing Dedicated General 
Operation Millage Proposal as Requested by Mayor Schilling 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL WOULD BE AUTHORIZED TO LEVY UP TO ___ MILLS WITH 
THE SUCCESSFUL PASSAGE OF THE FOLLOWING QUESTION: 

 
Shall the City of Troy levy new additional millage of up to ___ mills against 
all taxable property for a _____-year period of time, 2011 through _____, 
for general operating millage - road maintenance and snow plowing 
purposes? ___ mills are equal to $_____ on each $1,000.00 of taxable 
value. If approved, the additional millage levied will raise approximately 
$_____________ the first year it is levied. The millage will be levied on the 
Winter Tax Bill Annually. 
 
Yes ____ No ______ 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 
 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust-Final-January 12, 2011 
b) Traffic Committee-Final-January 19, 2011 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Final-March 9, 2011 
d) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-March 14, 2011 
e) Board of Zoning Appeals-Draft-March 15, 2011 
f) Planning Commission-Final-March 22, 2011 
g) Planning Commission-Draft-April 12, 2011 
h) Planning Commission-Final-April 12, 2011 

N-2 Department Reports:  
a) March 31, 2011 – Quarterly Financial Report 
b) RCOC Snow and Ice Control Contract Expense Report 5/01/2011 
c) 2010 Fire Department Annual Report 
d) 2011 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report 
 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) No Letter and Card of Appreciation Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2011 
 

- 10 - 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 
a) Oakland County – Resolution Adopting the Department of Management and Budget 

2011 Equalization Report 
 
N-5  David Smith v. Stopczynski 
 

O. STUDY ITEMS 
O-1  No Study Items Presented 
 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  Troy v Safeway Acquisition Company and Strategy for Labor Negotiations 
 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
Adoption of the 2011/12 Annual City Budget and T hree-Year Budget (2012/13 – 2013/14) - 
May 16, 2011 8:00 PM 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2011 
 

- 11 - 

 
SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 

Monday, May 16, 2011..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, June 6, 2011 ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, June 20, 2011 ................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, July 11, 2011 ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, July 25, 2011 ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 8, 2011 .................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 22, 2011 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 29, 2011 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, September 12, 2011 .......................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, September 26, 2011 .......................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 3, 2011 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 17, 2011 .............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 14, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 21, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 28, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 5, 2011 ............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 19, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
 

 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
April 18, 2011 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager  
 
FROM:  Gary G. Mayer, Chief of Police  
 
SUBJECT:  Interlocal Agreement with City of Sterling Heights & US Department of Homeland 

Security-ICE for Use of Gun Range   
 
 
Background 
 
Attached are copies of the proposed Interlocal agreements between the City of Troy and City of 
Sterling Heights and the US Department of Homeland Security-ICE for the purpose of both entities 
use of the City’s gun range.  These agreements allow for review and adjustments as needed. The 
agreements will not hinder the use of the range by the Troy Police department.  No additional staff is 
required.  
   
 
Recommendation 
 
City management recommends entering into Interlocal Agreements with the City of Sterling Heights 
and the US DHS ICE for the use of the City of Troy’s gun range for two (2) years with an option to 
renew for two (2) additional years provided such Agreements are mutually-approved by all named 
parties, in accordance with the attached Agreements dated April 5, 2011 and March 10, 2011 
respectively.    
 
Financial Considerations 
 
The City of Sterling Heights & US DHS ICE will both pay the City of Troy $8,000.00 per year. 
 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed and approved as to legality  
 
 

Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Prepared by Sgt. Donald Ostrowski   
 
 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\Regular Business - GunRangeInterlocalAgreement 04.11.doc 

bartholotl
Text Box
I-04

































 
 
May 3, 2011 
 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
   David J. Roberts, Assistant Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT: Troy City Code Chapter 93 Amendments – Correction    
 
 
Background: 
The recently approved amendments to Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, were inadvertently a 
repeal of Chapter 93 and adoption of only the latest modifications. This was an oversight on 
staff’s part for which we apologize. The correct amendment format to Chapter 93 should not 
repeal the entire chapter, but rather keep the current chapter and adopt the latest 
amendments, of which Council has already approved at the regular meeting of April 18, 2011. 
Attached for reference once again are the already approved amendments to Chapter 93 in red 
line format, and the entire amended ordinance as intended. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
Adopting this corrected format to Chapter 93 will maintain the Fire Prevention ordinance in its 
entirety with the latest amendments as intended. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
The implementation, administration, and enforcement of the provisions of Chapter 93 serve to 
meet Council’s Outcome Statement of Troy enhancing the health and safety of the community. 
Adopting this corrected amendment format will better serve this outcome. 
 
Options 
Recommend adopting this corrected amendment to Chapter 93 of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
 
Reviewed and approved as to legality: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Prepared by David Roberts, Assistant Fire Chief 
M:\11-803\My Documents\Word\Chapter 93 – 2009 IFC Amendments\Chapter 93 Agenda Item Memo 2.docx 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

bartholotl
Text Box
I-05



Chapter 93 - Fire Prevention 

93-1 

93.00 Adoption of the 2009 International Fire Code by Reference.  The 
International Fire Code, 2009 Edition, including its appendices, is hereby adopted 
by reference with the additions, insertions, deletions and changes prescribed in 
Section 93.01 of this Ordinance, as the Fire Prevention Code of the City of Troy, 
regulating and governing the safeguarding of life and property from fire and 
explosion hazards arising from the storage, handling and use of hazardous 
substances, materials and devices, and f rom conditions hazardous to life and 
property in the occupancy of buildings.  T his Ordinance and a  copy of the 
International Fire Code, 2009 Edition, shall be kept on file with the City Clerk. A 
copy of the International Fire Code in its entirety can also be found at: 
http://publicecodes.citation.com/icod/ifc/2009/index.htm) 
 
93.01 Additions, Insertions, Deletions and Changes to the International Fire 
Code, 2009 Edition.  The City of Troy adopts the following additions, insertions, 
deletions and changes from the International Fire Code, 2009 Edition.  
Subsequent section numbers used in this section shall refer to the like numbered 
sections of the International Fire Code, 2009 Edition. Any provisions of Chapter 
93, Section 93.01 which are not amended or deleted herein shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
 
101.1 Title.  These regulations shall be known as the Fire Prevention Code of 
The City of Troy, hereinafter referred to as “this code.”  
 
102.7 Referenced codes and standards.  The codes and standards referenced 
in this code shall be t hose that are listed in Chapter 47 and such codes and 
standards shall be c onsidered part of the requirements of this code to the 
prescribed extent of each such reference. Where differences occur between the 
provisions of this code and the referenced standards, the provisions which 
establish the higher standard for the promotion of the safety and welfare of the 
public and the protection of the public, or as otherwise determined by State of 
Michigan law, shall apply. References to the International Building Code shall be 
interpreted as the Michigan Building Code as set forth in Chapter 79, Section 8.1 
of the City of Troy Code. 
 
103.1 General.  The Troy Fire Department shall be responsible for fire 
prevention inspection activities and code enforcement of buildings and 
occupancies as related to the risk of fire or explosion within the City of Troy.  The 
department of fire prevention is established within the jurisdiction under the 
direction of the code official. The function of the department shall be the 
implementation, administration and enforcement of the provisions of this code 
and the codes and standards referenced in Chapter 45 of this code. 
 
104.11.4 Unlawful boarding or tampering with fire department emergency 
equipment.  A person shall not, without proper authorization from the fire official 
in charge of said fire department emergency equipment, cling to, attach to, climb 
upon or into, board, or swing upon any fire department emergency vehicle, 

http://publicecodes.citation.com/icod/ifc/2009/index.htm�


Chapter 93 - Fire Prevention 

93-2 

whether the same is in motion or at rest, operate any emergency warning 
equipment, or to manipulate or tamper with, or attempt to manipulate or tamper 
with any levers, valves, switches, starting devices, brakes, pumps, or any 
equipment or protective clothing on, or a part of, any fire department emergency 
vehicle. 
 
104.11.5 Damage/injury to fire department equipment/personnel.  It shall be 
unlawful for any person to damage or deface, or attempt or conspire to damage 
or deface, any fire department emergency vehicle or equipment at any time; or to 
injure, or attempt or conspire to injure, fire department personnel while 
performing departmental duties. 
 
105.1 General.  Permits shall be in accordance with Section 105. Where 
reference is made to this section for permits elsewhere in this code and there are 
no provisions for issuing said permits by the department of fire prevention, the 
code official is authorized to waive the particular permit requirement. 
 
105.1.2 Types of Permits.  There shall be three types of permits as follows: 
 

1. Operational permit.  An operational permit allows the applicant to conduct 
an operation or a business for which a permit is required by Section 105.6 
for either: 
 
1.1 A prescribed period. 
1.2 Until renewed or revoked. 

 
2. Construction permit.  A construction permit allows the applicant to install 

or modify systems of equipment for which a permit is required by Section 
105.7. 
 

3. Occupancy permit.  An occupancy permit allows the applicant to occupy 
existing premises for the purpose of conducting or operating a business 
for which a permit is required by Section 105.8. 

 
105.4.2 Information on Construction Documents.  Construction documents 
shall be drawn to scale upon suitable material. Electronic media documents  shall 
be submitted  as required by the fire code official. Construction documents shall 
be of sufficient clarity to indicate the location, nature and extent of the work 
proposed and show in detail that it will conform to the provisions of this code and 
relevant laws, ordinances, rules and regulations as determined by the fire code 
official. 
 
105.6 Required Operational Permits.  The code official is authorized to issue 
operational permits for the operations set forth in Sections 105.6.1 through 
105.6.46. Where there are no provisions for issuing said permits, the code official 
is authorized to waive the particular permit requirement.  



Chapter 93 - Fire Prevention 

93-3 

 
105.6.13 Special Events.  An operational permit is required to operate/conduct 
all special events including  exhibits, crafts and trade shows. 
 
105.6.13.1 Permit Fee.  Provided for in Troy City Code Chapter 60. 
 
105.6.14.1 Fireworks.  An operational permit is required for the public display 
and retail display and sale of fireworks. Application for permits shall be made in 
writing at least 15 days in advance of the date of the public display, retail display 
or sale of fireworks. The sale, possession, and distribution of fireworks for such 
display shall be lawful under the terms and conditions approved with the permit 
and for only that purpose. A permit granted hereunder shall not be transferable 
nor shall any such permit be extended beyond the time set forth therein unless 
approved by the fire official.  
 
105.6.14.2 Permit Fee.  Provided for in Troy City Code Chapter 60. 
 
105.6.20 Hazardous Materials.  An operational permit is required to store, 
transport on site, dispense, use or handle hazardous materials in excess of the 
most restrictive amounts listed in this code, the EPA’s Emergency Planning and 
Community Right To Know regulations, and MIOSHA’s Firefighter Right To Know 
requirements.  
 
105.6.20.1 Required Amounts for Reporting.  Reportable quantities shall be 
considered the maximum amount of hazardous material on site at any given 
time. This amount is required to be reported to the fire department as indicated in 
the Troy Fire Department’s HMIS packet as defined in Sections 407.5 and 
2701.5.2 of this code.  
 
105.6.20.2 Permit Fees.  Provided for in Troy City Code Chapter 60. 
 
105.7.1.1 Installations.  Before any fire suppression system or component is 
installed, enlarged, extended or modified, a permit shall be obtained from the 
code official. This shall include any device or relay connected to or controlled by 
the fire suppression system.  All work must be performed by a qualified installer 
who is properly licensed and/or certified to perform such work as determined by 
the code official. Construction documents shall be reviewed by the code official 
prior to the issuance of the permit. Upon issuance of the permit, the permit must 
be posted at the job site in plain view.  
 
105.7.1.2 Permit Fees.  Provided for in Troy City Code Chapter 60.   
 
105.7.5.1 Installations.  Before any fire alarm or detection system or component 
is installed, enlarged, extended or modified, a permit shall be obtained from the 
code official. This shall include auxiliary devices such as magnetic locks, 
electronic locks, or any device or relay connected to or controlled by the fire 



Chapter 93 - Fire Prevention 

93-4 

alarm or detection system.  All work must be performed by a qualified installer 
who is properly licensed and/or certified to perform such work as determined by 
the code official. Construction documents shall be reviewed by the code official 
prior to the issuance of the permit. Upon issuance of the permit, the permit must 
be posted at the job site in plain view.  
 
105.7.15 Permit issuance.  A permit granted hereunder shall not be transferable 
nor shall any such permit be extended beyond the time set forth therein unless 
approved by the fire official. When work is started without a permit, the permit fee 
shall be doubled. 
 
105.8 Required Occupancy Permit. The fire code official is authorized to issue 
an occupancy permit for a business as set forth in Section 105.8.1 through 
105.8.5. 
 
105.8.1 Use Group.  An occupancy permit is required for Use Groups A, B, F, M 
and S where such use will occupy 1,500 square feet or greater in area, and Use 
Group H of any size. 
 
Exception:  Multiple DBAs or LLCs in a single occupancy of less than 1,500 
square feet in area. 
 
105.8.2 Inventory Statement.  An inventory statement for the intended business 
shall be provided to the fire code official prior to the issuance of the occupancy 
permit revealing product or commodity to be stored, used, or produced, and any 
associated documentation as may be required by the code official. 
 
105.8.2.1 Hazardous Materials Inventory Statement.  Where required by the 
fire code official, each application for a permit shall include a Hazardous 
Materials Inventory Statement (HMIS) in accordance with Section 2701.5.2. 
 
105.8.3 Permit Application.  An occupancy permit application shall be filed with 
the fire code official prior to occupancy. The fire code official shall review the 
application, inventory statement(s), and any associated documentation, and 
conduct any necessary inspections and meetings before an occupancy permit is 
issued. 
 
105.8.4 Site and Building Preparation.  As part of the occupancy permit, the 
intended occupancy shall meet the following requirements: 
 

1. The building and any associated fire protection and life safety features 
shall comply with the requirements of this code. 

2. Fire apparatus access roads and fire lanes shall be designated and 
posted in accordance with Section 503. 

3. An address shall be posted in compliance with Troy City Code Chapter 
2. 



Chapter 93 - Fire Prevention 

93-5 

4. A building and/or tenant floor plan shall be provided to the fire code 
official in an approved format. 

5. A key box, as required by the fire code official, shall be installed in 
accordance with Section 506. 

 
105.8.5 Notification of Changes.  Changes in occupancy or use shall be made 
to, and approved by the fire code official before such changes occur. 
 
106.5 Cancellation fees.  Handling cost for permits canceled after being issued 
is 35% of the permit fee or $10.00, whichever is greater. 
 
108.1 Board of appeals established.  In order to hear and decide appeals of 
orders, decisions or determinations made by the code official relative to the 
application and interpretation of this code, there shall be and is hereby created a 
board of appeals as established in Section 116 of Chapter 79 of the Troy City 
Code.   
 
109.3 Violation penalties.  Persons who shall violate a provision of this code or 
shall fail to comply with any requirements thereof or who shall erect, install, alter, 
repair, service, test or do work in violation of the approved construction 
documents or directive of the fire code official, or of a permit or certificate used 
under provisions of this code, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by a 
fine of not more than five hundred (500) dollars or by imprisonment not 
exceeding ninety (90) days, or both such fine and imprisonment as determined 
by a judge in a court of law. Each day that a violation continues after due notice 
has been served shall be deemed a separate offense. 
 

SECTION 114 
MISCELLANEOUS HAZARDS 

 
114.1 Hazardous materials - fire department responsibility.  The Troy Fire 
Department shall be responsible for gathering and organizing information, 
identifying risks, and enforcing codes, standards, and laws relating to the 
production, storage and use of hazardous materials within the City of Troy and 
the notification to fire fighting personnel of related hazards. The method and 
frequency shall be determined by the fire official or his duly authorized 
representative. 
 
114.2 Hazardous conditions.  If upon the expiration of the time mentioned in a 
notice of violation, hazardous conditions, including but not limited to, obstructions 
or encroachments inhibiting access to or egress from a space or building, are not 
removed, the code official shall proceed to remove or have removed the same. 
The expense incurred shall be a debt to the City from the responsible person and 
shall be collected as any other debt to the City. 
 



Chapter 93 - Fire Prevention 

93-6 

114.3 False alarms.  It shall be unlawful for any person to summon, in any way, 
the fire department unless a valid reason for their response is present. (See also 
Troy City Code Chapter 103 - Alarm Ordinance.) 
 
114.4 Nonstandard Equipment.  Equipment and devices which are not in 
compliance with recognized standards for design and construction may be 
approved upon presentation of satisfactory evidence that they are designed and 
constructed for safe operation. 
 
114.5 Motion Picture & Television Film Production.  Motion picture / television 
film production and similar entertainment or documentary production activities 
shall comply with the requirements of this code and NFPA 140. 
 

SECTION 202 
GENERAL DEFINITIONS 

 
FIRE CODE OFFICIAL.  The fire chief, fire marshal, code enforcement officer, or 
other designated authority charged by the applicable governing body with the 
duties of administration and enforcement of the code, or duly authorized 
representative. The term “fire code official” may be used interchangeably with 
“code official” and “fire official” in this code. 
 
FIRE WATCH.  A temporary measure intended to ensure continuous and 
systematic surveillance of a building or portion thereof by one or more qualified 
individuals for the purposes of identifying and controlling fire hazards, detecting 
early signs of unwanted fire, raising an alarm of fire and notifying the fire 
department by method(s) approved or recommended by the fire code official. 
 
302.1 Definitions. 
 
BONFIRE.  An outdoor fire which burns only seasoned dry firewood or clean 
untreated lumber intended to minimize the generation of air contaminants and is 
utilized for occasional special events subject to the following provisions: 

 
1. Prior approval of the Troy City Council. 
2. Compliance with any special restrictions as determined by the fire official. 
3. Payment of costs associated with special fire protection as determined by 

the fire official. 
 
GROUND FIRE.  An outdoor fire for the purpose of viewing or warming, or 
utilized to cook food for human consumption, or for ceremonial purposes, which 
burns only seasoned dry firewood or commercially available charcoal briquettes 
intended to minimize the generation of air contaminants. 
 
304.2 Storage.  Storage of combustible rubbish or other combustible material 
such as pallets, crates, boxes, etc., shall not produce conditions that will create a 



Chapter 93 - Fire Prevention 

93-7 

nuisance or a hazard to the public health, safety or welfare and shall not be 
within 10 feet (3048 mm) of a structure. 
 
307.1.1 Prohibited Open Burning.  Open burning that is offensive or 
objectionable because of smoke or odor emissions or when atmospheric 
conditions or local circumstances make such fires hazardous shall be prohibited. 
Burning for purposes of incineration of waste material including paper, leaves, or 
any other combustible debris, outside of any structure at any place is prohibited. 
 
307.2 Allowable Burning.  Open burning shall be allowed without prior 
notification to the fire official for recreational fires, highway safety flares, smudge 
pots and similar occupational needs. 
 
307.2.2 Permit Required.  A permit shall be obtained from the fire code official in 
accordance with Section 105.6 prior to kindling a fire for recognized silvicultural 
or range or wildlife management practices, management of prairie grasses and 
plants, prevention or control of disease or pests, or a bonfire. Application for such 
approval shall only be presented by and permits issued to the owner of the land 
upon which the fire is to be kindled or the landowner’s contracted professional. 
Bonfires, as defined and set forth in Section 302.1, may be permitted if in 
compliance with Section 307.4.1 and subject to prior approval of the code official. 
 
307.3 Extinguishment Authority.  The fire code official or police official is 
authorized to order the extinguishment by the responsible person, another 
person responsible, or the fire department of open burning that creates or adds 
to a hazardous or objectionable situation. 
 
307.4.1 Bonfires.  A bonfire shall not be conducted within 50 feet (15 240 mm) 
of a structure or combustible material unless the fire is contained in a barbecue 
pit. Conditions which could cause a fire to spread within 50 feet (15 240 mm) of a 
structure shall be eliminated prior to ignition. Once approved, the intended 
maximum size and duration of a bonfire shall not be increased unless by City 
Council and only after it has been determined by the fire official that fire safety 
requirements of the situation and the desirable duration of burn warrant the 
increase prior to the bonfire. 
 
307.4.4 Ground Fires.  A ground fire shall be the minimum size for the intended 
purpose but not larger than 3 feet by 3 feet by 3 feet in dimension and shall be 
contained in a safe manner. 
 
307.6 Fire Department Training.  Open burning is allowed for the purpose of 
training fire fighters for fire fighting practice, or for the purpose of training the 
public, including workers or employees, or for the purpose of demonstration by 
the fire official or other trained fire personnel, when such burning is done in 
accordance with accepted practice. 
 



Chapter 93 - Fire Prevention 

93-8 

312.2 Posts.  Fire hydrants located in vehicular traffic areas shall be protected 
against vehicle damage by the installation of guard posts. These posts shall be 
installed in accordance with the City of Troy Development Standards 
requirements for water mains. It shall be the property owner's responsibility to 
provide and maintain this protection. 
 
315.3.3 Separation.  Outside storage shall not be located within 10 feet (3048 
mm) of a structure. 
 
404.5.2 Format.  Fire safety and evacuation plans, general floor plans, seating 
arrangements, storage configurations, or other specific plans shall be furnished 
to the fire code official in an approved format upon request. 
 

SECTION 502 
DEFINITIONS 

 
EMERGENCY VEHICLE ACCESS.  A passageway, as specified in Section 
503.7 of this code, for fire apparatus and other emergency vehicles to access a 
street or property in the event of an emergency. 
 
503.1 Where required.  Fire apparatus access roads shall be provided and 
maintained in accordance with Sections 503.1.1 through 503.1.3 and in 
accordance with City of Troy Development Standards. 
 
503.2.1 Dimensions.  Fire apparatus access roads and fire lanes shall have an 
unobstructed width of not less than 18 feet (5486.4 mm), except for approved 
security gates in accordance with Section 503.6, and an unobstructed vertical 
clearance of not less than 14 feet (4267.2 mm). 
 
503.6 Security gates.  The installation of security gates across a fire apparatus 
access road shall be approved by the fire code official. Where security gates are 
installed, they shall have an approved means of emergency operation. The 
security gates and the emergency operation shall be maintained operational at all 
times. Electric gate operators, where provided, shall be listed in accordance with 
UL 325. Gates intended for automatic operation shall be designed, constructed 
and installed to comply with the requirements of ASTM F 2200. 
 
503.7 Emergency Vehicle Access.  Emergency vehicle access (EVA) shall be 
determined and approved by the fire code official. Unless otherwise required, 
EVAs shall be of the following specifications: 
 

1. Minimum of 12 feet (3657.6 mm) wide. 
2. Surface capable of supporting the weight of fire apparatus up to 60,000 

pounds GVW. 
3. Minimum grade changes to accommodate fire apparatus undercarriage 

ground clearances. 



Chapter 93 - Fire Prevention 

93-9 

4. Mountable curb at entrance/exit with adequate turning radii to and from 
the EVA. 

5. Standard fire lane signage posted at entrance/exit to EVA. 
6. EVA signage posted at entrance/exit of EVA, on both sides of surface, 

every 50 feet (15240 mm) for length of EVA. 
7. EVA signage to withstand snow removal/landscape maintenance 

efforts. 
8. EVA to be kept clear of snow and vegetation. 

 
505.1 Address Identification.  Provided for in City Code Chapter 2.) 
 
506.1 Where Required.  Where access to or within a structure or an area is 
restricted because of secured openings or where immediate access is necessary 
for life-saving or fire-fighting purposes, or where an alarm signaling system or 
device is installed that may summon the fire department, the fire code official is 
authorized to require a key box to be installed in an accessible location. The key 
box shall be of an approved type and shall contain keys to gain access as 
required by the fire code official. Any appeal that may arise shall be referred to 
the Building Board of Appeals as established in Section 116 of Chapter 79 of the 
Troy City Code. 
 
507.3 Fire Flow.  Fire flow requirements for buildings or portions of buildings and 
facilities shall be determined in accordance with Appendix B and in accordance 
with City of Troy Development Standards. An appropriate pressure and flow 
margin of safety shall be provided with each fire sprinkler system as required by 
the code official. 
 
507.5 Fire Hydrant Systems.  Fire hydrant systems shall comply with Sections 
508.5.1 through 508.5.6 and shall be in accordance with Appendix C and City of 
Troy Development Standards. 
 
507.5.4.1 Removal of Obstructions.  If upon the expiration of the time 
mentioned in a notice of violation, obstructions or encroachments to a fire 
hydrant, or to other fire protection equipment, are not removed, the code official 
shall proceed to remove or have removed the same. The expense incurred shall 
be a debt to the City from the responsible person and shall be collected as any 
other debt to the City. 
 
609.1 General.  Commercial kitchen exhaust hoods shall comply with the 
requirements of the Michigan Mechanical Code and NFPA 96. 
 
609.1.1 Exhaust Fans.  Exhaust fans for commercial cooking hoods shall be 
installed so that the fans are operational at all times cooking is occurring. This 
may be accomplished by a temperature monitoring device installed in, on, or 
near the hood to activate the exhaust fan(s) at a pre-determined temperature, or 
as otherwise approved by the code official. 



Chapter 93 - Fire Prevention 

93-10 

 
803.3.1 Explosive and Highly Flammable or Combustible Materials. 
Furnishings or decorations of an explosive or highly flammable or combustible 
character shall not be used. 
 
806.1.1 Restricted Occupancies.  Natural cut trees shall be prohibited in Group 
A, B, E, F, H, I, M, R-1, R-2, R-4, S, and U occupancies. 
 

Exception: Trees located in areas protected by an approved automatic 
fire sprinkler system installed in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1 or 
903.3.1.2 shall not be prohibited in Groups A, B, E, F, M, R-1, R-2, S, and 
U. 

 
807.1 General.  In occupancies of Groups A, B, E, F, H, I, M, R-1 and 
dormitories in Group R-2, R-4, S, and U, curtains, draperies, hangings and other 
decorative materials suspended from walls or ceilings shall be flame resistant in 
accordance with Section 805.2 and NFPA 701 or be noncombustible. 
 
901.5 Installation Acceptance Testing.  Fire detection and alarm systems, fire-
extinguishing systems, fire hydrant systems, fire standpipe systems, fire pump 
systems, private fire service mains and all other fire protection systems and 
appurtenances thereto shall be subject to acceptance tests as contained in the 
installation standards and as approved by the fire code official. The fire code 
official shall be notified before any required acceptance testing is performed in 
order to schedule, witness and approve such testing prior to use of said fire 
protection system or equipment. 
 
901.6.2 Records.  Fire suppression, protection, or other related systems found to 
be noncompliant, malfunctioning, or otherwise non-operational in the manner 
required, designed, or intended, shall be identified as “noncompliant” by the 
service company or individual performing such service, and the fire code official 
and the occupant shall be notified immediately or at the earliest practical time. At 
no time shall an approval, compliance, or other indication of operability be affixed 
to, on, or near such system(s) so as to give false indication of designed, 
intended, or expected operation. 
 
901.6.2.2 Noncompliant Systems.  Fire suppression, protection, or other 
related systems found to be noncompliant, malfunctioning, or otherwise non-
operational in the manner required, designed, or intended, shall be identified as 
“noncompliant” by the service company or individual performing such service, 
and the fire code official and the occupant shall be notified immediately or at the 
earliest practical time. At no time shall an approval, compliance, or other 
indication of operability be affixed to, on, or near such system(s) so as to give 
false indication of designed, intended, or expected operation. 
 



Chapter 93 - Fire Prevention 

93-11 

901.6.3 Anti-Freeze Fire Sprinkler Systems.  Fire sprinkler systems designed 
and installed to protect areas prone to freezing shall be drained and tested, then 
refilled and maintained to insure the solution is operable to -20 degrees F or as 
otherwise approved by the code official. 
 

SECTION 902 
DEFINITIONS 

 
NONCOMPLIANT.  Refers to alterations, modifications, or other such changes to 
fire suppression, protection, detection, alarm, or other related systems, affecting 
the design, installation, or proper or intended operation of said system. Does not 
comply with the applicable standard or criteria set forth when originally installed, 
tested, and approved. 
 
903.2.11.1.2 Openings on one side only.  Where openings in a story are 
provided on only one side and the opposite wall of such story is more than  55 
feet (16 764 mm) from such openings, the story shall be equipped throughout 
with an approved automatic sprinkler system or openings as specified above 
shall be provided on at least two sides of the story. 
 
903.2.11.1.3 Basements.  Where any portion of a basement is located more 
than 55 feet (16 764 mm) from openings required by Section 903.2.11.1, the 
basement shall be equipped throughout with an approved automatic sprinkler 
system. 
 
903.2.11.3 Buildings Over 30 Feet in Height.  An automatic sprinkler system 
shall be installed throughout a building that has a floor level which has an 
occupant load of 30 or more occupants and which is located 30 feet (9144 mm) 
or more above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access.  
 

Exceptions:  Refer to the Michigan Building Code, as set forth in Chapter 
79, Section 8.1 of the City of Troy Code. 

 
903.3.5.3 Required Pressure Margin.  The code official is authorized to require 
a pressure margin of up to twenty (20) p.s.i. over the minimum design criteria for 
installed automatic fire sprinkler systems. Where this margin cannot be achieved, 
approved means shall be taken to provide this margin. 
 
903.4.2 Alarms.  Approved audible-visual devices shall be connected to every 
automatic sprinkler system. Such sprinkler water-flow alarm devices shall be 
activated by water flow equivalent to a single sprinkler of the smallest orifice size 
installed in the system. Alarm devices shall be provided on the exterior of the 
building in an approved location. Exterior audible-visual devices shall activate 
only on water flow. Where a fire alarm system is installed in the building, 
actuation of the automatic sprinkler system shall actuate the building fire alarm 
system. 



Chapter 93 - Fire Prevention 

93-12 

 
904.3.5 Monitoring.  Automatic fire extinguishing systems shall be monitored by 
a supervising station in accordance with NFPA 72 as approved by the code 
official. Where a building fire alarm system is installed, automatic fire-
extinguishing systems shall be monitored by the building fire alarm system in 
accordance with NFPA 72 and shall automatically annunciate their location at the 
building’s fire alarm control panel, and activate the building’s appropriate fire 
protective signaling sequence. 
 
905.3.2 Group A.  Class I automatic wet standpipes shall be provided in 
nonsprinklered Group A buildings having an occupant load exceeding 1,000 
persons. 
 

Exceptions: 
1. Open-air-seating spaces without enclosed spaces. 
2. Class I automatic dry and semiautomatic dry standpipes or 

manual wet standpipes are allowed in buildings where the 
highest floor surface used for human occupancy is 55 feet (16 
764 mm) or less above the lowest level of fire department 
vehicle access. 

 
907.2.13 High-Rise Buildings.  Buildings having floors used for human 
occupancy located more than 55 feet (16 764 mm) above the lowest level of fire 
department vehicle access shall be provided with an automatic fire alarm system 
and an emergency voice/alarm communication system in accordance with 
Section 907.2.12.2. 
 

Exceptions:  Refer to the Michigan Building Code, as set forth in Chapter 
79, Section 8.1 of the City of Troy Code. 

 
907.4.4 Signs.  Where fire alarm systems are not monitored by a supervising 
station, an approved permanent sign that reads: THIS ALARM DOES NOT 
NOTIFY THE FIRE DEPARTMENT - TO REPORT A FIRE DIAL 911. Such sign 
shall be installed adjacent to each manual fire alarm box. 
 

Exception:  Where the manufacturer has permanently provided this 
information on the manual fire alarm box and as approved by the code 
official. 

 
907.6.2.1.3 Temporal Code-3.  Audible alarm notification appliances shall sound 
in temporal Code-3 pattern as approved by the code official. 
 
907.7.2.1 Required Power.  Where required by the code official, systems and 
their components shall be designed to provide adequate power in order to 
accommodate additional devices as a result of anticipated future expansion to 



Chapter 93 - Fire Prevention 

93-13 

the system. Unless otherwise approved by the code official, 10 amps per 10,000 
square feet shall be used as a guide. 
 
907.7.3.2 High-Rise Buildings.  In buildings that have floors located more than 
55 feet (16 764 mm) above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access that 
are occupied for human occupancy, a separate zone by floor shall be provided 
for all of the following types of alarm-initiating devices where provided: 
 

1. Smoke detectors 
2. Sprinkler water-flow devices 
3. Manual fire alarm boxes 
4. Other approved types of automatic fire detection devices or 

suppression systems as required by the code official 
 
907.7.6 Annunciation.  Where fire suppression systems exist in multi-tenant 
occupancies, i.e., strip malls, separate annunciation, including water flow switch 
and inspector test valve, shall be required for each separately addressed tenant 
space unless otherwise approved by the code official. 
 
909.16.1 Smoke Control Systems.  Fans within the building shall be shown on 
the fire-fighter’s control panel. A clear indication of the direction of airflow and the 
relationship of components shall be displayed. A means of confirming equipment 
function such as an atmospheric pressure switch, air velocity switch, or electrical 
current differential device, shall be installed to indicate the status of fans, 
dampers, or other associated equipment during alarm activations or smoke 
control operations. Status indicators shall be provided for all smoke control 
equipment, annunciated by fan and zone and by pilot-lamp-type indicators as 
follows: 
 

1. Fans, dampers and other operating equipment in their normal 
status – WHITE. 

2. Fans, dampers and other operating equipment in their off or closed 
status – RED. 

3. Fans, dampers and other operating equipment in their on or open 
status – GREEN. 

4. Fans, dampers and other operating equipment in a fault status – 
YELLOW/AMBER. 

 
912.2 Location.  With respect to hydrants, driveways, buildings and landscaping, 
fire department connections shall be so located that fire apparatus and hose 
connected to supply the system will not obstruct access to the buildings for other 
fire apparatus. The location of fire department connections shall be within 100 
feet (30 480 mm) of a hydrant and shall be approved by the code official. 
 

SECTION 915.0 
TEMPERATURE AND MONITORING 



Chapter 93 - Fire Prevention 

93-14 

 
915.1 General.  Precautions shall be taken in all rooms and areas containing fire 
sprinkler equipment such as piping, valve(s), and fire pump(s), to prevent 
freezing of said equipment during times of extremely cold temperatures. Where 
the code official deems necessary, equipment shall be installed to monitor the 
temperature of said areas and send a trouble or supervisory signal to an 
approved location when the temperature falls below 40 degrees F to warn of 
freezing conditions so that the occurrence of frozen and/or broken piping, 
valve(s), and fire pump(s) can be prevented. 
 
1004.3 Posting of Occupant Load.  Every room or space that is an assembly 
occupancy shall have the occupant load of the room or space posted in a 
conspicuous place, near the main exit or exit access doorway from the room or 
space, or other approved location. Posted signs shall be of an approved legible 
permanent design and shall be maintained by the owner or authorized agent. 
The number of occupants permitted shall also be determined in accordance with 
Chapter 39 of the Troy City Code (parking limitation). 
 
1022.9 Smokeproof Enclosures and Pressurized Stairways.  In buildings 
required to comply with Section 403 or 405 of the International Building Code, 
each of the exit enclosures serving a story with a floor surface located more than 
55 feet (16 764 mm) above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access or 
more than 30 feet (9144 mm) below the finished floor of a level of exit discharge 
serving such stories shall be a smokeproof enclosure or pressurized stairway in 
accordance with Section 909.20 of the International Building Code. 
 
1024.1 General.  Approved luminous egress path markings delineating the exit 
path shall be provided in buildings of Groups A, B, E, I, M and R-1 having 
occupied floors located more than  55 feet (16 764 mm) above the lowest level of 
fire department vehicle access in accordance with Sections 1024.1 through 
1024.5. 
 
1026.2 Use in a Means of Egress.  Exterior exit stairways shall not be used as 
an element of a required means of egress for Group I-2 occupancies. For 
occupancies in other than Group I-2, exterior exit ramps and stairways shall be 
permitted as an element of a required means of egress for buildings not 
exceeding five stories above grade plane or having occupied floors more than 55 
feet (16 764 mm) above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access. 
 
1201.1 Scope.  Dry cleaning plants and their operations shall comply with the 
requirements of this chapter and NFPA 32, and the Michigan Fire Prevention 
Code 1941 PA 207, as amended, or its equivalent. 
 
2201.1 Scope.  Automotive motor fuel-dispensing facilities, marine motor fuel-
dispensing facilities, fleet vehicle motor fuel-dispensing facilities, aircraft motor-
vehicle fuel-dispensing facilities and repair garages shall be in accordance with 



Chapter 93 - Fire Prevention 

93-15 

this chapter and the Michigan Building Code, International Fuel Gas Code and 
the Michigan Mechanical Code, and the Michigan Storage and Handling of 
Flammable and Combustible Liquids Rules, as amended, or their equivalent. 
Such operations shall include both operations that are accessible to the public 
and private operations. 
 
2206.1 General.  Storage of flammable and combustible liquids shall be in 
accordance with Chapter 34 and Sections 2206.2 through 2206.6.3, and the 
Michigan Storage and Handling of Flammable and Combustible Liquids Rules, as 
amended, or their equivalent. 
 
2206.7.8 Gravity and Pressure Dispensing.  Flammable or combustible liquids 
shall not be dispensed by gravity from tanks, drums, barrels or similar containers. 
Flammable or combustible liquids shall not be dispensed by a device operating 
through pressure within a storage tank, drum or container. Approved pumps 
taking suction from the top of the container shall be utilized. 
 
2803.2 Identification.  Cartons shall be identified on at least one side with the 
classification level of the aerosol products contained within the carton as follows: 
 

LEVEL __________ AEROSOLS 
 
The side of the carton marked shall be clearly visible when stored in 
configurations of two or more cartons. 
 
3301.1.1 Explosive Material Standard.  In addition to the requirements of this 
chapter, NFPA 495 shall govern the manufacture, transportation, storage, sale, 
handling and use of explosive materials, and the Michigan Explosives Law 1970 
PA 202, as amended, or its equivalent. 
 
3301.1.3 Fireworks.  The possession, manufacture, storage, sale, handling and 
use of fireworks are prohibited unless in compliance with the Michigan Fireworks 
Law 1931 PA 328, as amended, or its equivalent. 
 
3301.1.4 Rocketry.  The storage, handling and use of model and high-power 
rockets shall comply with the requirements of NFPA 1122, NFPA 1125, and 
NFPA 1127, and the Michigan Model Rocket Law 1965 PA 333, as amended, or 
its equivalent. 
 
3301.2.4 Financial Responsibility.  Deleted. 
 
3301.2.4 Bond for Public Display:  The permit holder shall furnish a bond in an 
amount approved by the City of Troy for the payment of all potential damage 
caused either to the person or property due to the permitted display, and arising 
from any acts of the permit holder or the agent of the permit holder. 
 



Chapter 93 - Fire Prevention 

93-16 

3308.1 General.  The display of fireworks, including proximate audience displays 
and pyrotechnic special effects in motion picture, television, theatrical, and group 
entertainment productions, shall comply with this chapter and NFPA 1123 or 
NFPA 1126. Approved public displays shall be handled by an approved 
competent operator, and the fireworks shall be arranged, located, discharged 
and fired in a manner that will not be a hazard to property or endanger any 
person. 
 
3308.11 Retail Display and Sale.  A permit shall be required as set forth in 
Section 105.6 and regulated in accordance with this section. Fireworks displayed 
for retail sale shall not be made readily accessible to the public. A minimum of 
one pressurized-water portable fire extinguisher complying with Section 906 shall 
be located not more than 15 feet (4572 mm) and not less than 10 feet (3048 mm) 
from the hazard. “No Smoking” signs complying with Section 310 shall be 
conspicuously posted in areas where fireworks are stored or displayed for retail 
sale. No person under the age of 18 years shall sell, purchase or possess 
fireworks unless accompanied by a parent or legal guardian. 
 
3401.3 Referenced Documents.  The applicable requirements of Chapter 27, 
other chapters of this code, the Michigan Building Code, and the Michigan 
Mechanical Code pertaining to flammable liquids, and the Michigan Storage and 
Handling of Flammable and Combustible Liquids Rules, as amended, or their 
equivalent shall apply.  
 
3401.4 Permits.  Permits shall be required as set forth in Sections 105.6 and 
105.7, and the Michigan Fire Prevention Code 1941 PA 207, as amended, or its 
equivalent. 
 
3404.2.9 Above-Ground Tanks.  Above-ground storage of flammable and 
combustible liquids in tanks shall comply with Section 3404.2 and Sections 
3404.2.9.1 through 3404.2.9.7.10, and the Michigan Aboveground Storage Tank 
Rules, or their equivalent. 
 
3404.2.11 Underground Tanks.  Underground storage of flammable and 
combustible liquids in tanks shall comply with Section 3404.2 and Sections 
3404.2.11.1 through 3404.2.11.5.2, and the Michigan Underground Storage Tank 
Rules, or their equivalent. 
 
3801.2 Permits.  Permits shall be required as set forth in Sections 105.6 and 
105.7 and the Michigan Fire Prevention Code 1941 PA 207, as amended, or its 
equivalent. 
 
4604.23 Egress path markings.  Existing buildings of Groups A, B, E, I, M and 
R-1 having occupied floors located more than  55 feet (16 764 mm) above the 
lowest level of fire department vehicle access shall be provided with luminous 
egress path markings in accordance with Section 1024. 



Chapter 93 - Fire Prevention 

93-17 

Chapter 47 
REFERENCED STANDARDS 

 
State of Michigan Laws, Rules, or Requirements including but not 
necessarily limited to the following with amendments: 
 
Michigan Fire Prevention Code 1941 PA 207 
Michigan Explosives Law 1970 PA 202 
Michigan Fireworks Law 1931 PA 328 
Michigan Model Rocket Law 1965 PA 333 
Michigan Storage and Handling of Flammable and Combustible Liquids Rules 
Michigan Underground Storage Tank Rules 1999 
 
 
NFPA    National Fire Protection Association 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Standard           Referenced 
reference          in code 
number    Title        section number 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
96-08  Standard for Ventilation Control and Fire Protection   609.1 

of Commercial Cooking Operations 
 
140-08 Standard on Motion Picture and Television Production  114.5 

Studio Soundstages, Approved Production Facilities,  
and Production Locations 



Chapter 93 - Fire Prevention 

93-18 

Appendix C 
FIRE HYDRANT LOCATIONS AND DISTRIBUTION 

 
TABLE C105.1 

NUMBER AND DISTRIBUTION OF FIRE HYDRANTS 
    

FIRE-FLOW REQUIREMENT 
(gpm) 

MINIMUM NO.  
OF HYDRANTS 

AVERAGE SPACING  
 BETWEEN HYDRANTS a,b,c  

MAXIMUM DISTANCE FROM 
MOST REMOTE PORTION OF 

  (feet)  BUILDING ACCESSIBLE BY FIRE 
APPARATUS TO A HYDRANT d 

(feet) 
1,750 or less 1 500 250 
2,000-2,250 2 450 225 
2,500 3 450 225 
3,000 3 400 225 
3,500-4,000 4 350 210 
4,500-5,000 5 300 180 
5,500 6 300 180 
6,000 6 250 150 
6,500-7,000 7 250 150 
7,500 or more 8 or more e 200 120 
 
For SI: 1 gallon per minute = 3.785 L/m, 1 foot = 304.8 mm 

a Reduce by 100 feet (30,480 mm) for dead-end streets or roads with dead-end water main. 
b Where streets are provided with median dividers which  cannot be crossed by firefighters pulling hose lines, or 
where arterial streets are provided with four or more traffic lanes and have a traffic count of more than 30,000 
vehicles per day, hydrant spacing shall average 500 feet (152.4 m) on each side of the street and be arranged 
on an alternating basis up to a fire-flow requirement of 7,000 gallons per minute (26,495 L/min.) and 400 feet 
(122 m) for higher fire-flow requirements. 
c Where new water mains are extended along streets where hydrants are not needed for protection of structures 
or similar fire problems, fire hydrants shall be provided at spacing not to exceed 1,000 feet (305 m) to provide 
for transportation hazards. 
d Reduce by 50 feet (15,240 mm) for dead-end streets or roads. 
e One hydrant for each 1,000 gallons per minute (3,785 L/min.) or fraction thereof. 



Chapter 93 - Fire Prevention 

93-19 

Appendix D 
FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROADS 

 
D101.1 Scope. Fire apparatus access roads shall be in compliance with this 
appendix and all other applicable requirements of the International Fire Code, 
and City of Troy Development Standards. 
 
D103.5 Fire apparatus access road gates. Gates securing the fire apparatus 
access roads shall comply with all of the following criteria: 
 

1. The minimum gate width shall be 18 feet (5486.4 mm) unless 
otherwise approved by the code official. 

2. Gates shall be of the swinging or sliding type. 
3. Construction of gates shall be of materials that allow manual operation 

by one person. 
4. Gate components shall be maintained in an operative condition at all 

times and replaced or repaired when defective. 
5. Electric gates shall be equipped with a means of opening the gate by 

fire department personnel for emergency access. Emergency opening 
devices shall be approved by the code official. 

6. Manual opening gates shall not be locked with a padlock or chain and 
padlock unless they are capable of being opened by means of forcible 
entry tools carried by the fire department. 

7. Locking device specifications shall be submitted for approval to the 
code official. 

8. Where buildings protected by electric gates are provided with 
automatic fire protection and detections systems, gates shall open and 
remain open upon initiation of an alarm. 

 



Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 

93.00 Adoption of the 2006 2009 International Fire Code by Reference. The 
International Fire Code, 2006 2009 Edition, including its appendices, is hereby 
adopted by reference with the additions, insertions, deletions and c hanges 
prescribed in Section 93.01 of this Ordinance, as the Fire Prevention Code of the 
City of Troy, regulating and governing the safeguarding of life and property from 
fire and ex plosion hazards arising from the storage, handling and use of 
hazardous substances, materials and devices, and from conditions hazardous to 
life and property in the occupancy of buildings.  This Ordinance and a copy of the 
International Fire Code, 2006 2009 Edition, shall be kept on file with the City 
Clerk. A copy of the International Fire Code in its entirety can also be found at: 
http://publicecodes.citation.com/icod/ifc/2009/index.htm) 

 
93.01 Additions, Insertions, Deletions and Changes to the International Fire 
Code, 2006 2009 Edition.  The City of Troy adopts the following additions, 
insertions, deletions and changes from the International Fire Code, 2006 2009 
Edition.  Subsequent section numbers used in this section shall refer to the like 
numbered sections of the International Fire Code, 2006 2009 Edition. Any 
provisions of Chapter 93, Section 93.01 which are not amended or deleted herein 
shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
102.6 102.7 Referenced codes and standards. The codes and standards 
referenced in this code shall be those that are listed in Chapter 45 47 and such 
codes and standards shall be considered part of the requirements of this code to 
the prescribed extent of each such reference. Where differences occur between 
the provisions of this code and the referenced standards, the provisions which 
establish the higher standard for the promotion of the safety and welfare of the 
public and the protection of the public, or as otherwise determined by State of 
Michigan law, shall apply. References to the International Building Code shall be 
interpreted as the Michigan Building Code as set forth in Chapter 79, Section 8.1 
of the City of Troy Code. 
 
105.4.2 Information on Construction Documents. Construction documents 
shall be drawn to scale upon suitable material. Electronic media documents are 
allowed to shall be submitted when approved as required by the fire code official. 
Construction documents shall be of sufficient clarity to indicate the location, 
nature and extent of the work proposed and show in detail that it will conform to 
the provisions of this code and relevant laws, ordinances, rules and regulations 
as determined by the fire code official. 
 
105.6.13.1 Permit Fee. (See Troy City Code Chapter 60)  Provided for in Troy 
City Code Chapter 60. 
 
105.6.14.2 Permit Fee. (See Troy City Code Chapter 60)  Provided for in Troy 
City Code Chapter 60. 
 

http://publicecodes.citation.com/icod/ifc/2009/index.htm�


Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 

105.6.20.1 Required Amounts for Reporting. Reportable quantities shall be 
considered the maximum amount of hazardous material on site at any given 
time. This amount is required to be reported to the fire department as indicated in 
the Troy Fire Department’s HMIS packet as defined in Chapter 27 Sections 407.5 
and 2701.5.2 of this code.  
 
105.6.21.2 105.6.20.2 Permit Fees.  (See Troy City Code Chapter 60)  Provided 
for in Troy City Code Chapter 60. 

 
105.7.1.1 Installations. Before any fire suppression system or component is 
installed, enlarged, extended or modified, a permit shall be obtained from the 
code official. This shall include any device or relay connected to or controlled by 
the fire suppression system.  All work must be performed by a qualified installer 
who is properly licensed and/or certified to perform such work as determined by 
the code official. Construction documents shall be reviewed by the code official 
prior to the issuance of the permit. Upon issuance of the permit, the permit must 
be posted at the job site in plain view. The fire code official is authorized to 
require installation documents in an approved electronic format. 
 
105.7.1.2 Permit Fees.  (See Troy City Code Chapter 60)  Provided for in Troy 
City Code Chapter 60. 
 
105.7.3.1 105.7.5.1 Installations. Before any fire alarm or detection system or 
component is installed, enlarged, extended or modified, a permit shall be 
obtained from the code official. This shall include auxiliary devices such as 
magnetic locks, electronic locks, or any device or relay connected to or controlled 
by the fire alarm or detection system.  All work must be performed by a qualified 
installer who is properly licensed and/or certified to perform such work as 
determined by the code official. Construction documents shall be reviewed by the 
code official prior to the issuance of the permit. Upon issuance of the permit, the 
permit must be posted at the job site in plain view. The fire code official is 
authorized to require installation documents in an approved electronic format. 

 
105.7.14  105.7.15 Permit issuance. A permit granted hereunder shall not be 
transferable nor shall any such permit be extended beyond the time set forth 
therein unless approved by the fire official. When work is started without a permit, 
the permit fee shall be doubled. 
 

SECTION 112114 
MISCELLANEOUS HAZARDS 

 
112.1 114.1 Hazardous materials - fire department responsibility. The Troy 
Fire Department shall be responsible for gathering and organizing information, 
identifying risks, and enforcing codes, standards, and laws relating to the 
production, storage and use of hazardous materials within the City of Troy and 
the notification to fire fighting personnel of related hazards. The method and 



Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 

frequency shall be determined by the fire official or his duly authorized 
representative. 
 
112.4 114.2 Hazardous conditions. If upon the expiration of the time mentioned 
in a notice of violation, hazardous conditions, including but not limited to, 
obstructions or encroachments inhibiting access to or egress from a space or 
building, are not removed, the code official shall proceed to remove or have 
removed the same. The expense incurred shall be a debt to the City from the 
responsible person and shall be collected as any other debt to the City. 
 
112.5 114.3 False alarms. It shall be unlawful for any person to summon, in any 
way, the fire department unless a valid reason for their response is present. (See 
also the Troy City Code False FireChapter 103 – Alarm Ordinance.) 
 
112.6 114.4 Nonstandard Equipment. Equipment and devices which are not in 
compliance with recognized standards for design and construction may be 
approved upon presentation of satisfactory evidence that they are designed and 
constructed for safe operation. 
 
114.5 Motion Picture & Television Film Production.  Motion picture / television 
film production and similar entertainment or documentary production activities 
shall comply with the requirements of this code and NFPA 140. 

 
307.3.3 307.4.4 Ground Fires. A ground fire shall be the minimum size for the 
intended purpose but not larger than 3 feet by 3 feet by 3 feet in dimension and 
shall be contained in a safe manner. 
 
308.3 Open flame. A person shall not utilize or allow to be utilized, an open 
flame in connection with a public meeting or gathering for purposes of 
deliberation, worship, entertainment, amusement, instruction, education, 
recreation, awaiting transportation or similar purpose in assembly or educational 
occupancies without first obtaining written approval from the fire code official. 

 
404.5.1 404.5.2 Format. Fire safety and evacuation plans, general floor plans, 
seating arrangements, storage configurations, or other specific plans shall be 
furnished to the fire code official in an approved format upon request. 

 
503.6 Security gates. The installation of security gates across a fire apparatus 
access road shall be approved by the fire code official. Where security gates are 
installed, they shall have an approved means of emergency operation. The 
security gates and the emergency operation shall be maintained operational at all 
times. Electric gate operators, where provided, shall be listed in accordance with 
UL 325. Gates intended for automatic operation shall be designed, constructed 
and installed to comply with the requirements of ASTM F 2200. 
 



Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 

503.7 Emergency Vehicle Access. Emergency vehicle access (EVA) shall be 
determined and approved by the fire code official. Unless otherwise required, 
EVAs shall be of the following specifications:  
 
1. minimum of 12 feet (3657.6 mm) wide  
2. surface capable of supporting the weight of fire apparatus up to 60,000 

pounds GVW  
3. minimum grade changes to accommodate fire apparatus undercarriage 

ground clearances  
4. mountable curb at entrance/exit with adequate turning radii to and from the 

EVA  
5. standard “No Parking – Fire Lane”fire lane signage posted at entrance/exit to 

EVA  
6. EVA signage posted at entrance/exit of EVA, on both sides of surface, every 

50 feet (15240 mm) for length of EVA  
7. EVA signage to withstand snow removal/landscape maintenance efforts  
8. EVA to be kept clear of snow and vegetation  

 
505.1 Address Numbers Identification. (See Troy City Code Chapter 2.) 
Provided for in Troy City Code Chapter 2.  

 
506.1 When  Where Required. Where access to or within a structure or an area 
is restricted because of secured openings or where immediate access is 
necessary for life-saving or fire-fighting purposes, or where an alarm signaling 
system or device is installed that may summon the fire department, the fire code 
official is authorized to require a key box to be installed in an accessible location. 
The key box shall be of an approved type and shall contain keys to gain access 
as required by the fire code official. Any appeal that may arise shall be referred to 
the Building Board of Appeals as established in Section 116 of Chapter 79 of the 
Troy City Code.   

 
508.3 507.3 Fire Flow. Fire flow requirements for buildings or portions of 
buildings and facilities shall be determined in accordance with Appendix B and in 
accordance with City of Troy Development Standards. An appropriate pressure 
and flow margin of safety shall be provided with each fire sprinkler system as 
required by the code official. 
 
508.5 507.5 Fire Hydrant Systems. Fire hydrant systems shall comply with 
Sections 508.5.1 through 508.5.6 and shall be in accordance with Appendix C 
and City of Troy Development Standards. 
 
508.5.4.1 507.5.4.1 Removal of Obstructions. If upon the expiration of the time 
mentioned in a notice of violation, obstructions or encroachments to a fire 
hydrant, or to other fire protection equipment, are not removed, the code official 
shall proceed to remove or have removed the same. The expense incurred shall 



Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 

be a debt to the City from the responsible person and shall be collected as any 
other debt to the City. 

 
609.1 General. Commercial kitchen exhaust hoods shall comply with the 
requirements of the International  Michigan Mechanical Code and NFPA 96. 
 
903.2.11.1.2 Openings on one side only. Where openings in a story are 
provided on only one side and the opposite wall of such story is more than 75 
feet (22 860 mm)  55 feet (16 764 mm) from such openings, the story shall be 
equipped throughout with an approved automatic sprinkler system or openings 
as specified above shall be provided on at least two sides of the story. 
 
903.2.11.1.3 Basements. Where any portion of a basement is located more than 
75 feet (22 860 mm)  55 feet (16 764 mm) from openings required by Section 
903.2.11.1, the basement shall be equipped throughout with an approved 
automatic sprinkler system. 
 
903.2.10.3 903.2.11.3 Buildings Over 30 Feet in Height. An automatic sprinkler 
system shall be installed throughout a building that has a floor level which has an 
occupant load of 30 or more occupants and which is located 30 feet (9144 mm) 
or more above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access.  
 

Exceptions: Refer to the Michigan Building Code, as set forth in Chapter 
79, Section 8.1 of the City of Troy Code. 

 
905.3.2 Group A. Class I automatic wet standpipes shall be provided in 
nonsprinklered Group A buildings having an occupant load exceeding 1,000 
persons. 
 

Exceptions: 
1. Open-air-seating spaces without enclosed spaces. 
2. Class I automatic dry and semiautomatic dry standpipes or manual wet 

standpipes are allowed in buildings where the highest floor surface 
used for human occupancy is 75 feet (22 860 mm) 55 feet (16 764 
mm) or less above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access. 

 
907.2.12 907.2.13 High-Rise Buildings. Buildings having floors used for human 
occupancy located more than 55 feet (16 764 mm) above the lowest level of fire 
department vehicle access shall be provided with an automatic fire alarm system 
and an emergency voice/alarm communication system in accordance with 
Section 907.2.12.2.  
 

Exceptions: Refer to the Michigan Building Code, as set forth in Chapter 
79, Section 8.1 of the City of Troy Code. 

 



Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 

907.10.2.1 907.6.2.1.3 Temporal Code-3. Audible alarm notification appliances 
shall sound in temporal Code-3 pattern as approved by the code official. 
 
907.5.1. 907.7.2.1 Required Power. Where required by the code official, 
systems and their components shall be designed to provide adequate power in 
order to accommodate additional devices as a result of anticipated future 
expansion to the system. Unless otherwise approved by the code official, 10 
amps per 10,000 square feet shall be used as a guide. 
 
907.9.2 907.7.3.2 High-Rise Buildings. In buildings that have floors located 
more than 55 feet (16 764 mm) above the lowest level of fire department vehicle 
access that are occupied for human occupancy, a separate zone by floor shall be 
provided for all of the following types of alarm-initiating devices where provided:  
 

1. Smoke detectors  
2. Sprinkler water-flow devices.  
3. Manual fire alarm boxes.  
4. Other approved types of automatic fire detection devices or suppression 
systems as required by the code official.  

 
907.7.1 907.7.6 Annunciation. Where fire suppression systems exist in multi-
tenant occupancies, i.e., strip malls, separate annunciation, including water flow 
switch and inspector test valve, shall be required for each separately addressed 
tenant space unless otherwise approved by the code official. 
 
1019.1.8 Smokeproof enclosures. 1022.9 Smokeproof Enclosures and 
Pressureized Stairways. In buildings required to comply with Section 403 or 405 
of the code International Building Code, each of the exits of a building which 
serves stories where the floor surface is exit enclosures serving a story with a 
floor surface located more than 55 feet (16 764 mm) above the lowest level of fire 
department vehicle access or more than 30 feet (9144 mm) below the level 
finished floor of exit discharge a level of exit discharge serving such floor levels 
stories shall be a smokeproof enclosure smokeproof enclosure or pressurized 
stairway stairway in accordance with Section 909.20 of the International Building 
Code International Building Code. 
 
1023.2 1026.2 Use in a Means of Egress. Exterior exit stairways Exterior Exit 
Stairways shall not be used as an element of a required means of egress means 
of egress for occupancies in Group I-2 occupancies. For occupancies in other 
than Group I-2, exterior exit stairways exterior exit ramps and stairways shall be 
permitted as an element of a required means of egress means of egress for 
buildings not exceeding five stories above grade plane grade plane or having 
occupied floors more than 55 feet (16 764 mm) in height above the lowest level 
of fire department vehicle access. 

 



Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 

1024.1 General. Approved luminous egress path markings delineating the exit 
path shall be provided in buildings of Groups A, B, E, I, M and R-1 having 
occupied floors located more than 75 feet (22 860 mm) 55 feet (16 764 mm) 
above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access in accordance with 
Sections 1024.1 through 1024.5. 

 
1025.1 General. In addition to the means of egress required by this chapter, 
provisions shall be made for emergency escape and rescue in group R as 
applicable in section 101.2, classrooms greater than 250 feet 2 (23.2 m 2 ) in 
group E, and group I-1 occupancies. Basements and sleeping rooms below the 
fourth story above grade plane shall have at least 1 exterior emergency escape 
and rescue opening in accordance with this section. Where basements contain 1 
or more sleeping rooms, emergency egress and rescue openings shall be 
required in each sleeping room, but shall not be required in adjoining areas of the 
basement. Such opening shall open directly into a public street, public alley, 
yard, or court. 

 
Exceptions: 
1. In other than group R-3 occupancies as applicable in section 101.2, 

buildings equipped throughout with an approved automatic sprinkler 
system in accordance with section 903.3.1.1 or 903.3.1.2. 

2. In other than group R-3 occupancies as applicable in section 101.2, 
sleeping rooms provided with a door to a fire-resistance-rated corridor 
having access to 2 remote exits in opposite directions. 

3. The emergency escape and rescue opening is permitted to open onto 
a balcony within an atrium in accordance with the requirements of 
section 404, provided the balcony provides access to an exit and the 
dwelling unit or sleeping unit has a means of egress that is not open to 
the atrium. 

4. Basements with a ceiling height of less than 80 inches (2032 mm) shall 
not be required to have emergency escape and rescue windows. 

5. High-rise buildings in accordance with section 403. 
6. Emergency escape and rescue openings are not required from 

basements or sleeping rooms which have an exit door or exit access 
door that opens directly into a public street, public alley, yard, egress 
court, or to an exterior exit balcony that opens to a public street, public 
alley, yard, or egress court. 

7. Basements without habitable spaces and having not more than 200 
square feet (18.6 square meters) in floor area shall not be required to 
have emergency escape windows. 

 
2201.1 Scope. Automotive motor fuel-dispensing facilities, marine motor fuel-
dispensing facilities, fleet vehicle motor fuel-dispensing facilities, aircraft motor-
vehicle fuel-dispensing facilities and repair garages shall be in accordance with 
this chapter and the Michigan Building Code, International Fuel Gas Code and 
the Michigan Mechanical Code, and the Michigan Storage and Handling of 



Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 

Flammable and Combustible Liquids Rules, as amended, or their equivalent. 
Such operations shall include both operations that are accessible to the public 
and private operations. 

 
2206.1 General. Storage of flammable and combustible liquids shall be in 
accordance with Chapter 34 and Sections 2206.2 through 2206.6.3, and the 
Michigan Storage and Handling of Flammable and Combustible Liquids Rules, as 
amended, or their equivalent. 
 
3404.2.9 Above-Ground Tanks. Above-ground storage of flammable and 
combustible liquids in tanks shall comply with Section 3404.2 and Sections 
3404.2.9.1 through 3404.2.9.6.10 3404.2.9.7.10, and the Michigan Aboveground 
Storage Tank Rules, or their equivalent. 
 
4604.23 Egress path markings. Existing buildings of Groups A, B, E, I, M and 
R-1 having occupied floors located more than 75 feet (22 860 mm) 55 feet (16 
764 mm) above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access shall be 
provided with luminous egress path markings in accordance with Section 1024. 



Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 

Chapter 45 47 
REFERENCED STANDARDS 

 
State of Michigan Laws, Rules, or Requirements including but not 
necessarily limited to the following with amendments: 
 
Michigan Fire Prevention Code 1941 PA 207 
Michigan Explosives Law 1970 PA 202 
Michigan Fireworks Law 1931 PA 328 
Michigan Model Rocket Law 1965 PA 333 
Michigan Storage and Handling of Flammable and Combustible Liquids Rules 
Michigan Underground Storage Tank Rules 1999 

 
 

NFPA    National Fire Protection Association 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Standard           Referenced 
reference          in code 
number    Title        section number 
______________________________________________________________________  

 
96-08  Standard for Ventilation Control and Fire Protection   609.1 

of Commercial Cooking Operations 
 
140-08 Standard on Motion Picture and Television Production  114.5 

Studio Soundstages, Approved Production Facilities,  
and Production Locations 



Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention_________________________________________             
 

Appendix C 
FIRE HYDRANT LOCATIONS AND DISTRIBUTION 

 
TABLE C105.1 

NUMBER AND DISTRIBUTION OF FIRE HYDRANTS 
    

FIRE-FLOW REQUIREMENT 
(gpm) 

MINIMUM NO.  
OF HYDRANTS 

AVERAGE SPACING  
 BETWEEN HYDRANTS a,b,c  

MAXIMUM DISTANCE FROM 
MOST REMOTE PORTION OF 

  (feet)  BUILDING ACCESSIBLE BY FIRE 
APPARATUS TO A HYDRANT d 

(feet) 
1,750 or less 1 500 250 
2,000-2,250 2 450 225 
2,500 3 450 225 
3,000 3 400 225 
3,500-4,000 4 350 210 
4,500-5,000 5 300 180 
5,500 6 300 180 
6,000 6 250 150 
6,500-7,000 7 250 150 
7,500 or more 8 or more e 200 120 
 
For SI: 1 gallon per minute = 3.785 L/m, 1 foot = 304.8 mm 

a Reduce by 100 feet (30,480 mm) for dead-end streets or roads with dead-end water main. 
b Where streets are provided with median dividers which can  cannot be crossed by firefighters pulling hose lines, or 
where arterial streets are provided with four or more traffic lanes and have a traffic count of more than 30,000 vehicles per 
day, hydrant spacing shall average 500 feet (152.4 m) on each side of the street and be arranged on an alternating basis 
up to a fire-flow requirement of 7,000 gallons per minute (26,495 L/min.) and 400 feet (122 m) for higher fire-flow 
requirements. 
c Where new water mains are extended along streets where hydrants are not needed for protection of structures or similar 
fire problems, fire hydrants shall be provided at spacing not to exceed 1,000 feet (305 m) to provide for transportation 
hazards. 
d Reduce by 50 feet (15,240 mm) for dead-end streets or roads. 
e One hydrant for each 1,000 gallons per minute (3,785 L/min.) or fraction thereof. 

 



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
April 27, 2011 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
 Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development  
 Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 Stuart J. Alderman, Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Community Center Catering 
 
 
Background  

 
On February 24, 2011, requests for proposals (RFP) were received from companies interested in 

providing three-year requirements of catering services for the Troy Community Center with an option to renew 
for three additional years.  Sixty-six (66) companies were notified via the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade 
Network (MITN) website with three (3) proposals received.  All three firms met the pass/fail criteria; however, 
Crank’s Services LLC withdrew from the process. 

A committee consisting of Mark Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development; Stuart 
Alderman, Recreation Director; and Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor, rated the remaining two (2) 
companies on their proposals, menus, interviews and food samples. 

In addition, a return schedule was requested and received from the firms.  Based on the ratings from 
the evaluation committee and the points earned from the return schedule, staff recommends awarding the 
contract to the highest rated respondent; Encore Catering of Troy, Michigan.   

 Encore Catering received the highest score as a result of a best value process, which also considered 
experience including alcohol service, financial ability to perform, professional competence and positive 
references.  Encore guarantees a minimum return of $12,000.00 each year or 15% of gross receipts (less 
Michigan sales tax) whichever is greater.  

 
Recommendation 

 
City management recommends awarding a three-year contract for Community Center Catering with an 

option to renew for three (3) additional years to the highest rated respondent as a result of a best value 
process, Encore Catering of Troy, Michigan.   

The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of properly executed contract and 
proposal documents, including insurance certificates, the ability to qualify as the holder of the City’s liquor 
license and all other specified requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format/ Best Value SR8 - RFP - CateringServices 03.11.doc 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
I-06



 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

TROY COMMUNITY CENTER CATERER 
 
 
STATISTICS: 

 
 66 companies were notified via the MITN e-procurement website 

 
 Three (3) proposals were received 
 
 All three (3) companies met the pass/fail criteria; however, one (1) company 

withdrew from the process 
 

 Encore Catering received the highest score as a result of a best value process  
 
The following two (2) companies received the indicated final scores as a result of 
their proposal, menu, rate of return, interview and food sampling submissions. 
   
Company SCORE 
Encore Catering 89.9 
Kosch Catering 84.9 
  
 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL – THE FOLLOWING FIRM WITHDREW FROM THE PROCESS 

 Crank’s Services LLC  
 
 
Attachments: 
 

 Weighted Final Scoring 
 Evaluation Process 
 Original Tabulation 



 
WEIGHTED FINAL SCORING 

Troy Community Center Caterer 
 

Final Score Calculation: 
 
40% x Return Score 
40% x Proposal Score 
10% x Menu Score 
10% x Interview / Sample Food Score (Optional Phase)                        
100%              = Final Weighted Score 

 
In order to equate the rate of return to the weighted evaluation process scoring, 50 points was used to 
evaluate the percentage of gross receipts, and 50 points was used to evaluate the minimum total 
guarantee per year. – Note: 100 point basis for each phase -  
 

Phase 5:  Weighted Average Score for Return:  40% 
 Weighted Criteria – Difference in Costs 

[1-(High Return – Proposal Return) / high return] x 
available points 

Final 
Weighted 
Score  
(x .40) 

Vendors:   
Encore Catering  {1-($12,000–$12,000)/$12,000} x 50  =  50 

{1-(15% – 15%)/15%} x 50  =  50 
100 x .40 = 40.0 

Kosch Catering {1-($12,000–$9,000)/$12,000} x 50    =  37.5 
{1-(15% – 11%)/15%} x 50  =  36.7    

74.2 x .40 = 29.7 

 

Phase 2:  Weighted Average Score for Proposals: 40%   
Raters: 1 2 3 Average Final Weighted Score 

(x .40) 
Vendors:      
Encore Catering  86 77 82 82 32.8 
Kosch Catering 98 91 96 95 38.0 
 
Phase 3:  Weighted Average Score for Menus: 10%   
Raters: 1 2 3 Average Final Weighted Score 

(x .10) 
Vendors:      
Encore Catering  84 78 74 79 7.9 
Kosch Catering 96 96 89 94 9.4 
 
Summary:   Proposal, Menu and Return Scores   
 Price Score Proposal Score Menu Score Total Score 
Vendors:     
Encore Catering  40.0 32.8 7.9 80.7 
Kosch Catering 29.7 38.0 9.4 77.1 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
In order to equate the weighted evaluation process scoring, 50 points was used to evaluate the interview, 
and 50 points was used to evaluate the sample food.  
 
Phase 4:  Weighted Average Score for Interview and Sample Food:  10% 
RATERS 1 2 3 Average Final 

Weighted 
Score  
(x .10) 

Vendors:      
Encore Catering  Interview = 87.0  

 
 
Food =       90.0 
 

Interview = 84.0 
 
 
Food =       93.0
 

Interview = 97.5 
 
 
Food =     100.0
 

Interview:  
89.5 x 50 = 44.8 
 
Food:        
94.3 x 50 = 47.2 
 

92.0 x .10 = 9.2 
 
 
 
 

Kosch Catering Interview = 83.5  
 
 
Food =       88.0 
 

Interview = 80.5 
 
 
Food =       88.0 
 

Interview = 73.0 
 
 
Food =       56.0
 

Interview: 
79.0 x 50 = 39.5 
 
Food: 
77.3 x 50 = 38.7 
 

78.2 x .10 = 7.8 

 

 
FINAL SCORE:  
VENDORS:  Encore Catering Kosch Catering 

Rate of Return Score 40.0 29.7 
Proposal Score 32.8 38.0 
Menu Score  7.9  9.4 
Interview / Food Sampling Score  9.2  7.8 
FINAL SCORE 89.9 84.9 

 
*HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/ Bid Award 10-11 New Format / Best Value SR8 – RFP –Parks – Caterer TCC – WeightedRatingSummary 3.11.doc 

 



 
SELECTION PROCESS 

 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 
A City Committee will review the propos als.  The  City of Troy rese rves the right  to a ward this proposal to  the 
company considered the most qualified  based upon a combination of factors i ncluding but not limited to the 
following: 

 
A. Compliance with qualifications criteria  
B. Completeness of the proposal 
C. Financial strength  
D. Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
E. Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
F. Evaluation Process 

 
Phase 1:  Minimum Qualifications Evaluation. 
Companies will be required to meet minimum established criteria in order to go to the second phase of the process.  
(Evaluation Sheet Proposal) 
 
Phase 2:  Evaluation of Proposal 
The City Committee w ill use a w eighted scoring sheet to evaluate the required submitted proposals.  Each 
Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.  The scores of t he Committee Members w ill be averaged into 
one score for each bidder for this phase of the process. 

 
Phase 3:  Evaluation of Menus    
The City Committee will use a weighted scoring sheet to evaluate the required submitted menus.  Each Commi ttee 
Member will calculate a weighted score.  The scores of the Committee Members will be averaged into one score for 
each bidder for this phase of the process. 

 
Phase 4:  Food Evaluation and Interview Process (Optional)  
The City, at their option, will invite the short-listed companies to provide food samples and participate in an 
interview.  The City Commit tee will use a weighted scoring sheet to evaluate the su bmitted food samples and the  
interview.  Each Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.  The scores of the Committee Members will be 
averaged into one score for each bidder for this phase of the process. 

 
Phase 5:  Return 
Points for return will be proportionally assessed: 
 
FORMULA – [1-(High Return – Proposal Return) / high return] x available points (100 base point) 
 
Note:   50 points will be used to evaluate the percentage of gross receipts, and 50 points will be used to evaluate 

the minimum total guarantee per year.   
  
Phase 6:  Final Scoring and Selection 
The highest final weighted scored respondent will be the Community Center Caterer recommended to the Troy City  
Council for Award. 

 
  40% x Return Score (100 point base)  
    40% x Proposal Evaluation Score (100 point base)   
   10% x Menu Score (100 point base)  
   10% x Interview / Sample Food Score (100 point base) – Optional    
          100%    
    

Note:   The City of Troy reserves the right to change the order or eliminate an evaluation phase if deemed in 
the City’s best interest to do so. 

 
 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 10-43
Opening Date -- 2/24/2011 TABULATION Pg 1 of 1
Date Reviewed -- 4/13/2011 CATERING - TROY COMMUNITY CENTER

sl
FIRM NAME:

CHECK #
CHECK AMOUNT 

PROPOSAL:    TO PROVIDE THREE YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF CATERING SERVICES AT THE TROY 
COMMUNITY CENTER WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR THREE (3) ADDITIONAL YEARS

FOUR (4) COPIES (Yes or No)

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed  Y or N
PROPOSAL:  Return Schedule 

Percent of Gross Receipts 

Minimum Guarantee Per Year 

QUESTIONNAIRE: (Yes or No)

INSURANCE: Can Meet
Cannot Meet
Signed Y or N

THREE FORMS: Y or N
Non-Collusion 
Legal Status 
Indemnification Clause

PAYMENT SCHEDULE ATTACHED (Labeled) 

MENU ATTACHED (Labeled) 

SITE INSPECTION: Y or N
Date

WITHDREW:
 Crank's Services LLC

ATTEST:
 Julie Hamilton
 Diane Fisher Susan Leirstein CPPO, CPPB
 Carol Anderson Purchasing Director

G:/RFP-COT 10-43 Catering - Troy Community Center 

12,000.00$                              

Yes

Exhibit D

Yes

Yes

XX

$9,000 year 2

9% ($100K - $150K)
11% ($150K - $200K)
13% ($200K - $300K)

15% (over $300K)
$6,000 year 1

None

15% 7% (less than $100K)

Yes

Encore Catering

500.00$                                    

Kosch Catering

500.00$                                  

Yes

000290525 17756339

As Follows:

Yes

N/A

Yes

$12,000 year 3

TCC Catered Events Menu

Executive Summary

Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes

XX

Yes

2/10/2011
Yes

2/16/2011
Yes

Yes

Exhibit A

Yes



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
April 29, 2011 
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Rescind Bid Award / Re-award Contract – Aggregates 
 
 
Background 
 
On April 18, 2011, Troy City Council approved one-year contracts to provide Aggregate Material with 
an option to renew for one (1) additional year to various low bidders (Resolution #2011-04-085-J4b).  
On April 21, 2011, Richmond Transport Inc realized they made a calculation error when bidding the 
6A Slag and withdrew their bid.  Since this occurred after the award by City Council, Richmond 
Transport is considered in breach of contract. Richmond Transport received a written notification of 
default and remedies for reinstatement as a potential vendor after three (3) years.   
 
After a review of the bid results to determine the next lowest bidder, it is in the City’s best interest to 
re-award the contract to B&W Landscape Supply of Clinton Township, MI. B&W was contacted and 
verified they could honor the pricing as originally quoted.  
 
Recommendation 
 
City management recommends Troy City Council rescind with prejudice the contract approved on 
April 18, 2011, to Richmond Transport, Inc for 6A Slag, Aggregate Material (Resolution #2011-04-
085-J4b) and re-award the contract to the next lowest bidder, B&W Landscape Supply at a unit cost 
of $13.23 per ton, as contained on the bid tabulation opened March 22, 2011. 
 
Fund Availability  
 
Funds are available in the various departmental operating budgets of the Public Works division.  
Annual costs under the new contract with B&W Landscape Supply will increase an estimated 
$1,515.00, when compared with pricing submitted by Richmond Transport Inc. 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\Rescind-ReAward - Aggregates - ITB-COT11-06 04.11.doc 
 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
I-07



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT April 18, 2011 
 

- 10 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide one-year 
requirements of Transit Mixed Concrete with an option to renew for one additional year to the 
low bidders, McCoig Materials/Koenig Fuel & Supply of Plymouth, MI as the primary supplier, 
and Superior Materials of Farmington Hills, MI as the secondary supplier, at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened March 22, 2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting for an estimated total cost of $138,000.00, to commence 
May 1, 2011, and expire April 30, 2012. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders - Aggregates 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS one-year contracts to provide Aggregate 
Material with an OPTION to renew for one (1) additional year to the following low bidders: 
 

Recommended Vendors Item / Description Price/Ton 
Boulevard & Trumbell Towing 6.   Crushed Concrete 1” – 3” $8.48 
Tri-City Aggregates 2.   22A Gravel 

5.   Fill Sand 
$8.00 
$5.50 

B&W Landscape Supply 10.  Mason Sand 
11.  Limestone 1” – 3” 

$9.97 
$12.47 

Richmond Transport Inc 1.  6A Slag $10.20 
Novak Construction 3.   Pea Stone 

4.   60/40 Gravel 
8.   Chloride Sand 
9.   2NS Sand 
12.  Limestone 3” – 6” 

$11.49 
$12.25 
$14.95 
$8.95 

$17.25 
Osburn Industries Inc 13.  Limestone 4” – 8” $15.85 

  
at the unit prices stated above and confirmed with unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened March 22, 2011, copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting, with contracts expiring  April 30, 2012. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders: Printing/Distribution of 

Water and Sewer Bills 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one (1) year contract to provide 
laser printing and distribution of the City of Troy Water and Sewer Bills, with an option to renew 
for three (3) additional years to the low total bidder, LaserCom LLC of Troy, MI, for an 





CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 11-06
Opening Date -- 3/22/11 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 2
REVISED Date - 4/29/11 AGGREGATES

sl
VENDOR NAME: Boulevard & Tri-City B & W 

Trumbell Towing Aggregates, Inc Landscape 
Inc Supply 

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY/TONS DESCRIPTION TON TON TON

1. 500 6A SLAG No Bid No Bid 13.23$             
2. 1000 22A GRAVEL No Bid 8.00$                 9.33$               
3. 300 PEA STONE No Bid No Bid 13.74$             
4. 100 60/40 GRAVEL No Bid No Bid 14.69$             
5. 2500 FILL SAND No Bid 5.50$                 6.69$               
6. 100 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 1" - 3" 8.48$                   No Bid 8.87$               
7. 100 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 3" - 6" No Bid No Bid No Bid
8. 250 CHLORIDE SAND No Bid No Bid No Bid
9. 100 2NS SAND No Bid No Bid 9.77$               

10. 100 MASON SAND No Bid No Bid 9.97$               
11. 100 LIMESTONE 1" - 3" No Bid No Bid 12.47$             
12. 50 LIMESTONE 3" - 6" No Bid No Bid No Bid
13. 50 LIMESTONE 4" - 8" No Bid No Bid 17.72$             

- - -

848.00$               21,750.00$        43,255.00$      
ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 848.00$              21,750.00$       8,859.00$        

DELIVERY: Within Hours 2 Hours 24 Hours 24 Hours

MINIMUMS: 50 Tons 50 Tons 50 Tons

ALL OR NONE AWARD:   Y or N N N N

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 7AM-6PM 6AM-4PM M-F 8AM-4PM M-Sat
24 Hr. Phone No. (586) 939-6200 (248) 634-8277 (586) 463-0545

INSURANCE Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS: N/A Net 30 Days Net 30 
immediate delivery

EXCEPTIONS: Pricing firm 120 days No must be made to 
non-weight

restricted facility

PROPOSAL:  One-Year Requirements of Aggregates with an Option to Renew for
One (1) Additional Year

HIGHLIGHTED AREAS DENOTES LOW BIDDERS
DEFAULT:
Richmond Transport Inc - (6A Slag @ $10.20/ton) Reason: Withdrew bid after award

G:\ITB-COT 11-06 Aggregates

DISCOUNT IF AWARDED ALL ITEMS

ESTIMATED TOTAL:



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 11-06
Opening Date -- 3/22/11 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
REVISED Date - 4/29/11 AGGREGATES

VENDOR NAME: Edward C. Novak Osburn Tebben 
Levy Co Construction Industries, Inc Brothers Ltd

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY/TONS DESCRIPTION TON TON TON TON

Alt:  6A Natural  at 
$12.50/Ton

1. 500 6A SLAG 13.93$               13.50$               14.45$             16.00$              
2. 1000 22A GRAVEL 9.70$                 9.25$                 10.00$             11.50$              
3. 300 PEA STONE 13.13$               11.49$               13.85$             15.50$              
4. 100 60/40 GRAVEL 14.28$               12.25$               14.45$             16.50$              

Alt: Class II GR

5. 2500 FILL SAND 7.23$                 6.25$                 7.15$               7.25$                
Alt: 3X1 BF

6. 100 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 1" - 3" 13.93$               10.50$               10.53$             11.50$              
7. 100 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 3" - 6" No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid
8. 250 CHLORIDE SAND No Bid 14.95$               24.50$             22.00$              
9. 100 2NS SAND 10.03$               8.95$                 10.20$             11.00$              

Alt:  Mortar Sand

10. 100 MASON SAND 12.02$               10.27$               12.60$             11.00$              
11. 100 LIMESTONE 1" - 3" 19.50$               13.49$               13.60$             15.00$              
12. 50 LIMESTONE 3" - 6" No Bid 17.25$               No Bid No Bid
13. 50 LIMESTONE 4" - 8" No Bid 19.50$               15.85$             22.50$              

- 5% - -
45,693.00$               

45,655.00$        46,193.00$        52,310.50$      55,400.00$       
Alt:  $43,408.35

ESTIMATED TOTAL W/DISCOUNT: - 43,883.35$        - -

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 10,167.00$        792.50$           

DELIVERY: Within Hours 24 Hours 24 Hours 24 Hours 48 Hours

MINIMUMS: 50 Tons 50 Tons 50 Tons 50 Tons

ALL OR NONE AWARD:   Y or N N N N N

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 7AM-5PM M-F 7AM-5PM 8AM-5PM 7AM-10PM
24 Hr. Phone No. (313) 429-5389 (810) 358-7977 (313) 363-0077 (248) 652-7188

INSURANCE Can Meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Days 30 Days N/A Net 30 Days
Item 2:  22A Limestone

EXCEPTIONS: See Material Blank None Avail at add'l cost

Guides for Alt Train loads - if fuel over

Bids $5 price will increase

ATTEST:
Julie Hamilton
Diane Fisher
Jeffrey Biegler Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB
Marina Basta Farouk Purchasing Director

DISCOUNT IF AWARDED ALL ITEMS

ESTIMATED TOTAL:



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
April 20, 2011 
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Rescind Bid Award / Re-award Contract – Custodial Supplies 
 
 
Background 
 
On March 28, 2011, Troy City Council approved a one-year contract to provide Custodial Supplies for 
City facilities to the lowest acceptable bidder, Central Poly Corporation of Linden, NJ (Resolution 
#2011-03-064-J4e).  On April 8, 2011, Central Poly declined the consideration for award due to their 
inability to meet insurance requirements as specified.  Central Poly received a written notification of 
default and remedies for reinstatement as a potential vendor after three (3) years.   
 
After a thorough review of the bid results to determine the most favorable award, it is in the City’s best 
interest to re-award the contract to the lowest total bidder for both items; Empire Equipment & Supply 
Company of Detroit, MI. Empire has been able to meet insurance requirements as stipulated in the 
bid proposal. 
 
Recommendation 
 
City management recommends Troy City Council rescind with prejudice the contract approved on 
March 28, 2011, to Central Poly Corporation for Custodial Supplies (Resolution #2011-03-064-J4e) 
and re-award the contract to the lowest total bidder, Empire Equipment & Supply Co for an estimated 
total cost of $16,134.00, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened February 23, 2011. 
 
Fund Availability  
 
Funds are available in the various departmental operating budgets for Custodial Supplies.  Annual 
costs under the new contract with Empire Equipment & Supply Co will increase an estimated 
$500.00, when compared with pricing submitted by Central Poly Corporation. 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\Rescind-ReAward - CustodialSupplies - ITB-COT11-03 04.11.doc 
 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
I-08



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final March 28, 2011 
 

- 6 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase one (1) 2011 
Ford Expedition 4X4 from Signature Ford of Owosso, MI, through a Macomb County 
Cooperative Purchasing Agreement for an estimated total cost of $27,767.50. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Lowest Bidder – Custodial Supplies 
 
Resolution #2011-03-064-J-4e 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide one (1) year 
requirements of Custodial Supplies to the lowest  acceptable bidder, Centra l Poly Corporation, 
of Linden, NJ, at an estimated total cost of $15,662.00, at uni t prices contained in the bid 
tabulation dated February 23, 2011,  a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the aw ard is contingent upon the contractor SUBMISSION 
of properly executed bid and cont ract documents, including insur ance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Traffic Control Signs and 

Posts 
 
Resolution #2011-03-064-J-4f 
 
RESOLVED, that Troy City Council hereby AWARDS one-year contracts to provide Traffic 
Control Signs and Posts on a proposal by proposal basis to the five lowest total bidders as 
follows: 
 

Bidders Proposal 
Estimated 
Total Cost

Custom Products Corporation of Jackson, MS A, B, C, G, J and K $22,700.00
Rathco Safety Supply, Inc of Portage, MI D and G $  1,900.00
Rocal, Inc of Frankfort, OH E, F and G $  7,720.00
Carrier & Gable, Inc of Farmington Hills, MI H $  5,620.00
Dornbos Sign, Inc of Charlotte, MI I $  5,390.00

 
At unit prices contained on the bid tabulation, which opened February 10, 2011, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring March 1, 
2012. 
 
g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exer cise Renewal Option – Hauling and Disposal 

of Dirt and Debris 
 
Resolution #2011-03-064-J-4g 
 
WHEREAS, On April 5, 2010, Troy City Council awarded a one-year contract to provide Hauling 
and Disposal of Dirt and Debris with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the lowest 
total acceptable bidder, Bedrock Express LTD of Ortonville, MI (Resolution #2010-04-081-I-4b); 
and  
 





CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 11-03
Opening Date -- 2/23/11 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 4
Date REVISED-- 4/20/11 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES

sl
VENDOR NAME: Empire Sun Valley Hercules & 

Equipment Foods Co Hercules Inc
& Supply Co

EST CASE CASE CASE
ITEM QTY (CS) DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE

1. 300 2 Ply Toilet Tissue, 4.5" W X 3"- 3.5" Dia 29.33$        31.11$       29.45$        
29.04$        w/terms DMS

2. 500 Unbleached Multi-fold Towels, 9.25" x 9.516" 14.67$        13.69$       15.00$        
14.52$        w/terms

ESTIMATED TOTAL BOTH ITEMS: 16,134.00$ 16,178.00$ N/A

DELIVERY: Within 3 Days 1 Day 7 Days
Minimum shipment: $500.00 $500.00 $150.00

CONTACT INFO Hrs of Operations 8AM-5PM 7AM-4PM 8AM-5PM
24 Hr Phone # (313)366-0700 (313)615-9590 (313)933-6669
Fax # (313)366-0706 (313)865-6364 (313)933-1801

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Marked A Blank 4064 & 1751

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX XX
Cannot meet
Signed   Y or N Y Y Y

1% 10 Days
PAYMENT TERMS N t 30 N t 30 N t 30PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 Net 30 

WARRANTY: Manufacturer Blank Manufacturer

ALL OR NON-AWARD - Box     Y or N Y Y N

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y or N Y Y Y

PROPOSAL -- One-Year Requirements of Custodial Supplies
NO BIDS:
Industrial Cleaning Supply Company BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER

DMS:
Hercules & Hercules Inc - Reason: Toilet roll size too small at 4 x3.21 in - Does not fit dispensers

DEFAULT:
Central Poly Corporation - ($15,662.00) - Reason: Vendor chose NOT to clear insurance requirements as specified

ATTEST:
MaryAnn Hays Susan Leirstein CPPO,CPPB
Diane Fisher Purchasing Director
Julie Hamilton 

G:ITB-COT 11-03Custodial Supplies_tab.xls



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 11-03
Opening Date -- 2/23/11 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 4
Date Reviewed - 2/25/11 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES

VENDOR NAME: APAC Paper Nichols Jem HP Products
& Packaging Industries, Inc Corporation

Alternate
EST CASE CASE CASE CASE

ITEM QTY (CS) DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
80 Rolls/ Case

1. 300 2 Ply Toilet Tissue, 4.5" W X 3"- 3.5" Dia 33.50$         32.20$        30.63$         30.29$          
2. 500 Unbleached Multi-fold Towels, 9.25" x 9.516" 13.95$        15.10$       17.12$         14.44$         

ESTIMATED TOTAL BOTH ITEMS: 17,025.00$ 17,210.00$ 17,749.00$  18,124.40$  

DELIVERY: Within 3 Days 2 Days 2-3 Days 3-10 Days
Minimum shipment: $200.00 $250.00 $400.00 $200.00

CONTACT INFO Hrs of Operations 8AM-5PM 8-5 M-F 8AM-5PM 8AM-5PM
24 Hr Phone # (313) 982-6400 (800) 442-0213 (248) 583-1879 (800) 333-7277
Fax # (313) 982-9900 (231) 799-3550 (248) 583-1976 (734) 369-5708

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Marked NPS Specs Blank #1, #2

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot meet
Signed   Y or N Y Y Y Y

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Net 25 Net 30 Net 30 

WARRANTY: Manufacturer Blank Blank BlankWARRANTY: Manufacturer Blank Blank Blank

ALL OR NON-AWARD - Box     Y or N N N Y N

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y or N Y Y Y Y

PROPOSAL -- One-Year Requirements of Custodial Supplies

G:ITB-COT 11-03Custodial Supplies_tab.xls



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 11-03
Opening Date -- 2/23/11 BID TABULATION Page 3 of 4
Date Reviewed - 2/25/11 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES

VENDOR NAME: Supply Pro Staples Jem Commerce
Business Industries, Inc Connect LLC
Advantage

EST CASE CASE CASE CASE
ITEM QTY (CS) DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1. 300 2 Ply Toilet Tissue, 4.5" W X 3"- 3.5" Dia 35.71$         33.95$        32.81$         46.26$          
2. 500 Unbleached Multi-fold Towels, 9.25" x 9.516" 14.84$        17.15$       18.34$         25.00$         

** see note
ESTIMATED TOTAL BOTH ITEMS: 18,133.00$ 18,760.00$ 19,013.00$  26,378.00$  

DELIVERY: Within 1 Day 1 Day 2-3 Days 2 Days
Minimum shipment: $500.00 $50.00 $400.00 $75.00

M-F M-F 
CONTACT INFO Hrs of Operations 8AM-5PM 8AM-5PM 8AM-5PM 7:30AM-4PM

24 Hr Phone # (248) 672-1800 (800) 693-9900 (248) 583-1879 (810) 423-3741
Fax # (810) 239-2819 (248) 465-1529 (248) 583-1976 (810) 424-0042

Descriptive 
DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Marked Blank Literature Flyer ADD. #1

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX XX Exception
Cannot meet
Signed   Y or N Y N Y N

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 Days Net 30 Net 30 

WARRANTY: N/A Manufacturer Blank Mfg

ALL OR NON-AWARD - Box     Y or N Y N N N

EXCEPTIONS: Attached To Blank Blank Insurance 
Bib "B" will be via 

supplier who
Ships 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y or N Y Y Y Y

PROPOSAL -- One-Year Requirements of Custodial Supplies

** Note: Amount corrected by Purchasing

G:ITB-COT 11-03Custodial Supplies_tab.xls



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 11-03
Opening Date -- 2/23/11 BID TABULATION Page 4 of 4
Date Reviewed - 2/25/11 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES

VENDOR NAME: E & R Applied - Madalyns 
Industrial Michigan, LTD Contracting

LLC
EST CASE CASE CASE CASE

ITEM QTY (CS) DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
80 Roll Case => 40.63$         w/terms

1. 300 2 Ply Toilet Tissue, 4.5" W X 3"- 3.5" Dia 41.46$        42.74$        47.00$         
19.12$        w/terms

2. 500 Unbleached Multi-fold Towels, 9.25" x 9.516" 19.51$        34.11$        65.70$         
24,186.99$  

ESTIMATED TOTAL BOTH ITEMS: 24,680.60$ 29,877.00$ 46,950.00$  

DELIVERY: Within 1-2 Days 3-5 Days 10 Days
Minimum shipment: $250.00 2 Cases $400.00

8AM-12PM Sat M-F
CONTACT INFO Hrs of Operations 8AM-5PM M-F 8AM-4:30PM 9AM-6PM

24 Hr Phone # (586) 540-7635 (586) 978-7400 (248) 414-9438
Fax # (586) 795-2553 (586) 978-7600 (248) 486-4010

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Marked Attachment A Blank X 

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX Page Missing
Cannot meet
Signed   Y or N Y Y Page Missing

2%, 10 Days
PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Days Net 30 Days Page MissingPAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Days Net 30 Days Page Missing

WARRANTY: Manufacturer Blank Page Missing

ALL OR NON-AWARD - Box     Y or N Y N Page Missing

EXCEPTIONS: $75 shipping Blank Page Missing
fee will apply

for order under 
min ship amount

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y or N Y Y Page Missing

PROPOSAL -- One-Year Requirements of Custodial Supplies

G:ITB-COT 11-03Custodial Supplies_tab.xls



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT April 18, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin gave the Invocation. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, April 18, 2011, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations  
 
a) Community Survey Results Presentation - Ed Sarpous, Target Insyght 
b) 2011 City of Troy Assessment Roll and Board of Review Report – Nino Licari 
c) Amendments to Troy City Code Chapter 96 - Fire Prevention – Based Upon 2009 

International Fire Code and 2009 Michigan Building Code – Assistant Chief Roberts 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items  
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 Public Hearing – Special Use Approval - Capital Grille Outdoor Seating Area, North 
Side of Big Beaver, East of Coolidge  (2800 W. Big Beaver Road, Space Q123), 
Section 20, Presently  Zoned B-2 (Communi ty Business) Controlled by  Consent 
Judgment (File Number SU-386) 

 
The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing at 8:29 PM. 
The Mayor CLOSED the Public Hearing at 8:29 PM after receiving no Public Comment. 
 
Resolution #2011-04-072 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby GRANTS Special Use Approval and 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the proposed Capital Grille Outdoor Seating Area, located on 
the north side of Big Beaver, east of Coolidge (2800 W. Big Beaver R oad, Q123), Section 20, 
within the B-2 Zoning District. 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT April 18, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
E-2 Public Hearing - Zoning Ordinance Text Am endment – (File Number - ZOTA 236) – 

Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance Rewrite 
 
The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing at 9:07 PM. 
Public comment was received from Mary Ann Bernardi and Paul Beck. 
The Mayor CLOSED the Public Hearing at 9:14 PM. 
 
Resolution #2011-04-073 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the existing City of Tr oy Zoning Ordinance text and map be AMENDED to 
read as written in the pr oposed Zoning Ordinance text (March 31, 2011 Draft), and map 
(Prepared by the City of Troy Planning Depar tment, dated 2-22-2011), wit h the term “Drive-
throughs” added to Use Group 6 of Table 5. 03-A-1, as recommended by the Planning 
Commission; and, in the section pertaining to the requirement for an RV being owned by a 
property owner, add the language to allow a leased vehicle to be requested for approval. Also, 
in section 3.10-D, in the last sentence, add the word “present” after “members” for approval. In 
section 9.4-A, add a reference to  the implementation of the Ma ster Plan when considering for 
compatibility. In 11-06-C-3, add language to the effect that “efforts shall be made to ensure that 
multiple transportation modes are safely and effe ctively accommodated in an effort to provide 
alternate modes of access and alleviate vehicle tr affic congestion particularly as it pertains to 
the improvements necessary along major roads . Editorial changes to 11.06-E-4, second 
paragraph be renumbered as number “6”; and, in 13.02-A-7, change “plant” to “plants”. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The typographical e rrors shall be CORRECTED in the amended 
document: 
 

p. 18 - Hotel - “access to all rooms providinged from. . .” 
p. 24 - Planned Unit Development - add “(PUD)” for clarity and consistency 
 - Preliminary Development Plan - add “)” after (PDP 
p. 204 - 8.03.D.1 - first line - “…shall seek for Final…” 
p. 256 - 12.05 - Correct “Easements” in the title 
p. 264 - 13.02.B.2.a - delete “at” (sixth line) 
p. 297 - 14.01.C.4 - In “features of site” sentence - change “were” to “was” 
p. 298 - 14.02.A - Change “accessory dwellings” to “accessory buildings.” 
p. 301 - 15.02.A.1-“…may shall be a member of the Planning Commission…” 

 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling 
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT April 18, 2011 
 

- 3 - 

The Meeting RECESSED at 9:24 PM. 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 9:34 PM. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business 
 
Resolution #2011-04-074 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy  City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business to take action on an item that does not appear on the 
Agenda. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Reduce Public Comment, Rule #16 – Members of the Public & 
Visitors 
 
Resolution #2011-04-075 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REDUCES Public Comment, Council Rule #16, 
Members of the Public & Visitors, from five minutes to three minutes at the request of the Chair 
and by majority vote of City Council members elect. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini 
No: Howrylak, Fleming 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
Bernardi, Mary Discussed support of the Library and trust 
Goetz, John Discussed support of the Library 
Black, Shirley Discussed support of the Library 
Kantamaneni, Vennela Discussed support of the Library 
Tetrault, Beth Discussed support of the Library 
Haddad, Tony Discussed support of the Library, and snow removal 
Schepke, Gordon Discussed support of the Library and trust  
Vert, John Discussed support of the Library and millage increase 
Kraft, Karen Discussed support millage for the Library 
Hennessy, John Discussed support of the Library 
Peters, Richard Discussed support of the Library and various topics 
Geiger, M.L. Discussed support of the Library 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT April 18, 2011 
 

- 4 - 

Beck, Paul,  Discussed support of the Library, discussed City financial issues 
Zembrzuski, Audre Discussed support of the Library 
Wengrow, Irv Discussed support of millage increase 
Billa, Sirisha Discussed support of the Library 
Church, April Discussed support of the Library, and City financial issues 
Ewald, Dan Discussed support of the Library 
Reinhardt, Marvin Discussed various topics 
Foster, Scott Discussed support of the Transit Center 
Bloomingdale, Bruce Discussed City financial issues and support of the Library 
Brake, Dan Discussed support of the Library 
Cooper-Koerner, 
Patricia 

Discussed support of the Library 

  
Mayor Schilling left the Meeting at 10:29 PM and returned to the Meeting at 10:33 PM 
  
Kuppa, Padma Discussed support of the Library 
Burke, Thomas Discussed City financial issues and the Library 
Daniels, Janice Discussed City financial issues 
Prasad, Anu Discussed support of the Library 
Cowger, William Discussed City financial issues 
Kempen, Edward Discussed support of the Library and City financial issues 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
The Meeting RECESSED at 11:01 PM. 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 11:08 PM. 
 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  Three-Year (2010/11 – 2012/13) Revised Budget – Spring 2011 Update 
 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy’s financial challenge is not only about controlling expenditures, it is 
about forecasting revenues; and 
 
WHEREAS, It is imperative that Troy’s organizational structure matches its declining revenue 
stream; and 
 
WHEREAS, Advancing solutions one year at a time is not a solution as the financial challenge 
spans more than one year; and 
 
WHEREAS, The best practice of adopting a three-year balanced budget addresses financial 
challenges over a longer time horizon thus advising the community what level of service can be 
expected, or not expected, over the next 36 months; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT April 18, 2011 
 

- 5 - 

WHEREAS, The City of Troy took control of its future by adopting a three-year balanced budget 
on May 10, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, These budgets were forecast to utilize an aggregate amount of fund balance 
estimated at $4,900,000 to balance budgets for fiscal years 2010/11, 2011/12, and 2012/13; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, The attached budget revision has been calibrated to reflect updates in accordance 
with the attached memorandum from City Manager, John Szerlag and Assistant City 
Manager/Finance and Administration, John Lamerato; and 
 
WHEREAS, These calibrations still result in a utilization of fund balance in the aggregate of 
approximately $3,768,504 for fiscal years 2010/11, 2011/12, and 2012/13; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the 
Revised Three Year Budget (2010/11 – 2012/13), and that a copy be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Withdraw  the Resolution for Agenda Item H-1 Three-Year (2010/11 
– 2012/13) Revised Budget – Spring 2011 Update 
 
Resolution #2011-04-076 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WITHDRAWS the Resolution for Agenda 
Item H-1 Three-Year (2010/11 – 2012/13) Revised Budget – Spring 2011 Update. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Schedule City  Council Study Session for the Purpose of 
Discussing Three-Year (2010/11 – 2012/13) Revised Budget – Spring 2011 Update 
 
Resolution #2011-04-077 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Slater 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a City Council Study Session 
for the purpose of discussing Three-Year (2010/11 – 2012/13) Revised Budget – Spring 2011 
Update  on Monday, May 9, 2011, from 6:00 PM – 8:00 PM, to be followed by the Regular City 
Council Meeting at 8:30 PM.  
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT April 18, 2011 
 

- 6 - 

 
I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session: None Requested 
 
I-4 Amendments to Troy  City Code Chapte r 93, Fire Prevention, Based Upon 2009 

International Fire Code and 2009 Michigan Building Code 
 
Resolution #2011-04-078 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, of the 
Code of Ordinances of the Cit y of Troy, as amended, as recommended by City Management; a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business 
 
Resolution #2011-04-079 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Kerwin 
  
RESOLVED, That Troy  City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business to take action on an item that does not appear on the 
Agenda. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Pr ocedure for the City  Council, Rule #26 –  
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM 
 
Resolution #2011-04-080 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT April 18, 2011 
 

- 7 - 

RESOLVED, That City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City Council, 
Rule #26 - Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM and AUTHORIZE City 
Council to EXTEND the adjournment time to 12:30 AM. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
I-5 Request to Sell City  of Troy  Owned Property, Rochester Road Surplus Parcel, 

Section 23, Sidwell 88-20-23-354-048 
 
Resolution #2011-04-081 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain parcels 
will best serve the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of a remnant parcel. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby FINDS that “the 
public interest will best be served without obtaining a sealed bid” in accordance with Resolution 
#2007-01-028 Policy Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess City Owned Property and 
APPROVES the sale of the remnant parcel, described in Attachment “A” ATTACHED hereto, to 
Castlemark Homes, LLC, for $53,000.00 the appraised value as outlined in the Offer to 
Purchase, with conditions, plus closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That closing will take place when all conditions have been met; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 
Agreement to Purchase and the Warranty Deed on behalf of the City; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record said 
documents, including all attachments, at the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to and made a part of the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling , Beltramini 
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
I-6 2011 Tri-Party Program 
 
Resolution #2011-04-082 
Moved by McGinnis 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT April 18, 2011 
 

- 8 - 

Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Cost Participation Agreement 
between the City of Troy and the Board of Road Commissioners for Oakland County for the 
2011 Tri-Party Program at an estimated cost to the City of Troy of $93,479, and that the Mayor 
and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business 
 
Resolution #2011-04-083 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Fleming 
  
RESOLVED, That Troy  City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business to take action on an item that does not appear on the 
Agenda. Item I-7, Request from Woodberry Wine, LLC for a New Wholesale Liquor License, 
was added to the agenda. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
I-7 Request from Woodberry Wine, LLC for a New Wholesale Liquor License. 
 
(a) Request For New Wholesale Liquor License 
 
Resolution #2011-04-084 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Woodberry Wine, LLC for a new Wholesale License to be located at 1307 East Maple, Suite B, 
Troy, MI, 48083, Oakland County {MLCC Req. #607285}; and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor 
and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
 (b) Agreement 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT April 18, 2011 
 

- 9 - 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Woodberry Wine, LLC for a new Wholesale License to be located at 1307 East Maple, 
Suite B, Troy, MI, 48083, Oakland County {MLCC Req. #607285}; and hereby AUTHORIZES 
the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 

a. Regular City Council Meeting of April 4, 2011 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Transit Mixed 

Concrete 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-4a 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT April 18, 2011 
 

- 10 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide one-year 
requirements of Transit Mixed Concrete with an option to renew for one additional year to the 
low bidders, McCoig Materials/Koenig Fuel & Supply of Plymouth, MI as the primary supplier, 
and Superior Materials of Farmington Hills, MI as the secondary supplier, at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened March 22, 2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting for an estimated total cost of $138,000.00, to commence 
May 1, 2011, and expire April 30, 2012. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders - Aggregates 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS one-year contracts to provide Aggregate 
Material with an OPTION to renew for one (1) additional year to the following low bidders: 
 

Recommended Vendors Item / Description Price/Ton 
Boulevard & Trumbell Towing 6.   Crushed Concrete 1” – 3” $8.48 
Tri-City Aggregates 2.   22A Gravel 

5.   Fill Sand 
$8.00 
$5.50 

B&W Landscape Supply 10.  Mason Sand 
11.  Limestone 1” – 3” 

$9.97 
$12.47 

Richmond Transport Inc 1.  6A Slag $10.20 
Novak Construction 3.   Pea Stone 

4.   60/40 Gravel 
8.   Chloride Sand 
9.   2NS Sand 
12.  Limestone 3” – 6” 

$11.49 
$12.25 
$14.95 
$8.95 

$17.25 
Osburn Industries Inc 13.  Limestone 4” – 8” $15.85 

  
at the unit prices stated above and confirmed with unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened March 22, 2011, copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting, with contracts expiring  April 30, 2012. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders: Printing/Distribution of 

Water and Sewer Bills 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one (1) year contract to provide 
laser printing and distribution of the City of Troy Water and Sewer Bills, with an option to renew 
for three (3) additional years to the low total bidder, LaserCom LLC of Troy, MI, for an 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT April 18, 2011 
 

- 11 - 

estimated total cost of $12.256.56 per year, plus the actual cost of first class postage, at unit 
prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 28, 2011, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting to commence May 1, 2011, and expire April 
30, 2012. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder: Pavement Seam, 

Fracture Sealing and Spray Injection Patching Program 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to complete the Pavement 
Seam, Fracture Sealing and Spray Injection Patching Program for the City of Troy to the low 
bidder, Michigan Joint Sealing, Inc. of Farmington Hills, MI, for an estimated total cost of 
$142,900.00, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened April 5, 2011, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements; and if changes in the quantity of work are required either additive 
or deductive, Troy City Council hereby authorizes such changes in an amount not to exceed 
budgetary limitations. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw ard to Low Bidders: Emergency Response 

Kits 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-4e 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to furnish a one-time purchase 
of emergency response gear for the Troy Police Department to the following low total bidders: 
Michigan Police Equipment of Charlotte, MI, for ProTech helmets at an estimated cost of 
$18,400.00; and Priority One Emergency, Inc. of Livonia, MI, for 5.11 Tactical gear at an 
estimated total cost of $22,520.00, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 
17, 2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders: Boiler Replacement 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-4f 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to furnish and install a new 
replacement boiler at the Troy Hall of Justice Building to the following low bidders: Global 
Green Service Group of Rockwood, MI, for Phase 1, asbestos abatement and boiler removal at 
an estimated total cost of $18,280.00; Pleune Service Company of Lansing, MI, for Phase 2, 
boiler installation and controls at an estimated total cost of $158,200.00; and Phase 3, 
fireproofing will be completed using the informal quote process, the entire project is scheduled 
for reimbursement through the Energy Efficiency and Conservations Block Grant Program. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT April 18, 2011 
 

- 12 - 

 
g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders: John Arbor Sub 

Resurfacing 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-4g 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contract No. 11-2, John Arbor Sub 
Resurfacing to Barrett Paving Materials, Inc., 5800 Cherry Hill Road, Ypsilanti, MI, 48198, for 
their low total bid amount of $207,568.00. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 25% of the total project cost. 
 
h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Award to Sole Bidder: Energy Management 

Improvement Project 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-4h 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish and install a new 
energy management system in the original 1965 City Hall building to the sole bidder, 
Mechanical Controls & Maintenance, Inc. (MCMI) of Sterling Heights, MI, at an estimated total 
cost of $192,242.00, which is scheduled for reimbursement through the Energy Efficiency and 
Conservation Block Grant Program.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements. 
 
J-5 Casualty and Property Insurance Renewal – Request to Negotiate with the 

Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Manager to negotiate a 
new agreement with the Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) for the 
Casualty and Property Insurance needs of the City of Troy. 
 
J-6 Bid Waiver: Integrated Security Management System Core Upgrade 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-6 
 
WHEREAS, SimplexGrinnell is an authorized, licensed installer in Michigan of the Andover 
Controls Security System; 
 
WHEREAS, It is desirable to upgrade the security management system software to be 
compatible with the city-wide effort to move to a SQL 2008 platform; 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT April 18, 2011 
 

- 13 - 

WHEREAS, The Police Department has remote access to monitor video and alarms at all 
facilities from a central location with compatible equipment and software; and 
 
WHEREAS, Due to the complexity of the system, it is desirable to allow the company who 
programmed and currently maintains the system to upgrade the application; thus, avoiding 
corruption of the programming; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal 
bidding procedures and hereby AUTHORIZES the City of Troy to utilize the services of 
SimplexGrinnell of Farmington Hills, MI, to purchase and install the Continuum software core 
upgrade for an estimated total cost of $14,975.00, in accordance with their proposal dated 21-
Mar-11, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-7 Telecommunication Contracts 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-7 
 
WHEREAS, Some of the City’s voice and data telecommunication contracts with AT&T were 
expiring, a review of all contracts was conducted to determine if any costs savings could be 
achieved utilizing new technology; and 
 
WHEREAS, The services under these contracts are integrated, complex and dependent upon 
each other; therefore, AT&T ensures any conversion of unexpired contracts would not trigger 
early termination fees and still reduce costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, AT&T and Telnet have offered the City three-year contracts to pay for three (3) 
direct T1 lines, convert nine (9) T1 circuits to AVTS technology, upgrade current internet service 
from 3MB to 30MB, and eliminate the current DS3 service with AT&T; and contract with Telnet 
to provide PRI voice service for the City telephone switch and Codespear at an estimated 
monthly savings of $1,862.00 over three (3) years; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DEEMS it to be in the 
City’s best interest to APPROVE three-year contracts for telecommunication services from 
AT&T and Telnet at an estimated monthly cost of $3,910.00 and $1,281.00, respectively, as 
detailed on Appendix A, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
J-8 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent  Easement for Storm Sew er and Surface 

Drainage from Ludovik and Liljana Dedaj - #88-20-03-201-056 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-8 
 
Resolved, That the Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for storm 
sewer and surface drainage, for a consideration amount of One Dollar ($1.00), from Ludovik 
and Liljana Dedaj, owners of the property having Sidwell #88-20-03-201-056; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is DIRECTED to record the Permanent 
Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting.  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT April 18, 2011 
 

- 14 - 

 
J-9 Bid Waiver: Worker’s Compensation Insurance Renewal for Fiscal Year 2011/12 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-9 
 
WHEREAS, The Michigan Municipal League (MML) has provided Worker’s Compensation 
Insurance for the City of Troy and the premium charged has been equitable based on the City’s 
experience; and 
 
WHEREAS, It is desirable to continue the program through the MML due to the positive 
experience of participating in the MML; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal 
bidding procedures and the estimated premium cost of $336,349 is hereby APPROVED for 
Worker’s Compensation Insurance through the Michigan Municipal League (MML) for the 
2011/2012 Fiscal Year. 
 
J-10 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Kathy Derderian- 

President of Deaf Arts Festival 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-10 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Deaf Arts Festival, 
asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the community for the 
purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City Management. 
 
J-11 T.R. Pieprzak v. City of Troy 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-11 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Attorney’s Office to defend the 
City of Troy in the T.R. Pieprzak Company, Inc. v. City of Troy lawsuit, and is AUTHORIZED to 
pay reasonable and necessary costs and fees in the defense of the action. 
 
J-12 Michael Joseph Burns v. City of Troy 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-12 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Attorney’s Office to defend the 
City of Troy in the Michael Joseph Burns v. Troy Police Department lawsuit, and is 
AUTHORIZED to pay reasonable and necessary costs and fees in the defense of the action. 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Announcement of Public Hearing – FY 2011/2012 City Budget–May 16, 2011 at 7:30 PM 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT April 18, 2011 
 

- 15 - 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City  Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City  Manager by  Individual City  Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

L-1  Council Referrals: 
a) Periodic Personnel Evaluation of  the City Manager and/or City Attorney – Advanced by 

Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin 
 
Vote on Resolution to Schedule a Special M eeting for the Purpose of Conducting a City  
Manager Periodic Evaluation 
 
Resolution #2011-04-086 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Special Meeting immediately 
following the Budget Study Session on Monday, May 2, 2011, at 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., for the 
purpose of going into Closed Session to conduct a City Manager Periodic Evaluation.  
 
Yes:  Beltramini, Kerwin, McGinnis 
No:  Schilling, Fleming, Howrylak, Slater 
 
MOTION FAILED 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   Council Comments Advanced 
 
Council Member Beltramini encouraged all to purchase Troy Youth Assistance raffle tickets 
from any Troy Youth Assistance Board member or at the office. 
 
Mayor Schilling discussed recognition for members of the Planning Commission including 
former member Vleck in May, 2011. 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Planning Commission Regular-Draft-March 22, 2011 

Noted and Filed 

N-2 Department Reports: None Submitted 
a) 2011 City of Troy Assessment Roll and Board of Review Report 
b) FY 2011/2012 Budget 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT April 18, 2011 
 

- 16 - 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted 
 
N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
 
N-5  Communication: State of Michigan Liquor Control Commission – Notice of Sunday 

Sales 
Noted and Filed 

 
N-6  Communication: State of Michigan Liquor Control Commission – Notice of 

Impending Investigation – Cazadores, LLC 
Noted and Filed 

 
N-7  Letter of Understanding from Rehmann R obson for Audit Services for the Year 

Ending June 30, 2011 
Noted and Filed 

 
N-8  Huntley v. City of Troy 

Noted and Filed 
 
N-9  Economic Vitality Incentive Program 

Noted and Filed 

O. STUDY ITEMS 

O-1  No Study Items Presented 
 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  No Closed Session Requested 
 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 12:11 AM. 
 
 

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew  
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – Draft April 25, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
The Special Meeting of the Troy  City Council was held April 25, 2011, at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini-Absent 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 
Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Beltramini  
 
Resolution #2011-04-087 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Beltramini at the City Council Special Meeting of April 25, 1011 due to being out of the county. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Fleming, Howrylak, McGinnis, Slater  
No: Kerwin 
Absent:  Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:  

C-1 Proposed Fiscal Year 2011/2012 Annual Budget and Three-Year Budget 
 
Overview of 2011/12 Budget 
 
The proposed Fiscal Year 2011/2012 Annual Budget was presented by John M. Lamerato, 
Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration. 
 
John Szerlag, City Manager prov ided an overview of the budge t, Personnel Summary and cost 
saving measures to date. 
 
Mr. Lamerato provided an overview of the General Fund: Revenues. 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:43 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 8:52 PM. 
 
Mr. Lamerato provided an overview of the General Fund: Expenditures. 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-2



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – Draft April 25, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

 
Mr. Lamerato provided an overview  of the Special Revenue Funds: Internal Service Funds and 
Debt Service Funds. 
 
Mr. Lamerato provided an overvi ew of the Special Revenue Funds: CDBG, Local Street, Major 
Street, Budget Stabilization, and Refuse and Recycling Funds. 
 
Mr. Lamerato provided an overview of the In ternal Service Funds: Building Operations, 
Information Technology, Fleet Maintenance,  Compensated Absences, Unemployment 
Insurance, and Workers’ Compensation. 
 
Mr. Lamerato provided an overview of the Debt Service Funds: General Debt Service fund, 2000 
MTF Bond – Rochester Road, Proposal A, B and C Debt Service funds, Schedule of Principal 
and interest – All Funds, and Projected Millage Rate Requirements – General Debt Fund. 
 
D. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
David Ashland Discussed budget presentation concerns 
Richard Peters Discussed animal control concerns 
Bruce Bloomingdale Discussed budget concerns 
Audre Zembrzuski Questioned budget figures 
Paul Beck Questioned budget figures 
John Vert Discussed budget concerns 
 

E. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:51PM. 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – Draft May 2, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
The Special Meeting of the Tr oy City Council was held May 2, 2011, at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:  

C-1 Proposed Fiscal Year 2011/2012 Annual Budget and Three-Year Budget 
 
John Lamerato, Assistant Cit y Manager/Finance and Administration reviewed the 2011/2012 
Budget including Capital Projects, Enterprise Funds, and 3-Year Budget. 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:47PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 8:58PM. 
 
Discussion took place in regard to the proposed 3-Year Budget and the future impacts of staffing 
and the Library. 
 
D. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
Bruce Bloomingdale Discussed budget concerns 
Richard Peters Discussed budget concerns 
Janice Daniels Discussed budget concerns 
Mark Petty Discussed budget concerns 
 

E. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 11:04PM. 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-2



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – Draft May 5, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
The Special Meeting of the Tr oy City Council was held May 5, 2011, at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the meeting to order at 1:00 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini - Absent 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak - Arrived at 1:08 PM 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
 

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Beltramini  
 
Resolution #2011-05-088 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Beltramini at the City Council Special Meeting of May 5, 1011 due to a prior commitment. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Fleming, Howrylak, McGinnis, Slater  
No: Kerwin 
Absent:  Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:  

C-1 Discussion of Target Insyght Survey Results 
 
Ed Sarpolus reviewed the Target Insyght Survey Results. 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 2:47PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 2:58PM. 
 
Discussion continued on the Target Insyght Survey Results. 
 
D. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
D-1 No Public Comment 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-2



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – Draft May 5, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

E. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 3:21PM. 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
  

May 2, 2011 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director  
 
RE: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidders – Asphalt  

Paving Materials- Hot Patch 
 

 
Background 
 
On April 19, 2011, proposals were competitively bid and electronically received as required by City 
Charter and Code for one-year requirements of asphalt paving materials- hot patch with an option to 
renew for one additional year.  54 vendors were notified of the bid opportunity via the MITN website 
with three (3) bid responses received.  After reviewing these proposals, Cadillac Asphalt LLC was 
selected for Item 6) Bulk Tack Coat because of their plant proximity to the City of Troy. Asphalt paving 
materials- hot patch are purchased on an as needed basis throughout the year.  
  
 
Recommendation 
 
City management recommends awarding contracts to the low bidders, Barrett Paving Materials, Inc 
for Items 1-5, and Item 7) at an estimated total cost of $82,900.00; and Cadillac Asphalt LLC for Item 
6) at an estimated total cost of $2,500.00, all at unit prices listed in the attached bid tabulation. 
Awards are contingent upon contractors’ submission of properly executed bid documents including 
insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.   
 
 
Fund Availability  
 
Funds for these materials are available through the Public Works operating budgets    
 
 
 
Prepared by: Marina Basta Farouk, Project Construction Manager 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format/ Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 - AsphaltHotPatch ITB-COT 11-11 05.11.doc 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-04a



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT  11-11
Opening Date -- 4/19/11 BID TABULATION
Date REVIEWED - 5/2/11 ASPHALT PAVING MATERIALS - HOT PATCH

sl
VENDOR NAME: Barrett Paving Ajax Materials Cadillac Asphalt

 Materials, Inc Corporation LLC

ITEM EST QTY
# (TONS) DESCRIPTION Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price

1 200 1100T  36A Wearing 47.00$                        50.00$                         54.00$                          
2 300 1100T 20AA Wearing 46.00$                        48.00$                         48.00$                          
3 200 1100L 20AA Leveling 45.00$                        47.00$                         47.00$                          
4 800 Commercial Top 44.00$                        48.25$                         48.00$                          
5 250 Commercial Base 44.00$                        45.00$                         46.00$                          
6 500 gals Bulk Tack Coat No Bid 5.00$                           5.00$                            
7 100 pails Tack Coat - 5 gal 45.00$                        60.00$                         60.00$                          

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST: 82,900.00$                 92,150.00$                  93,000.00$                   
ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARED ITEMS: 82,900.00$                 2,500.00$                     

Sat. as needed
PROXIMITY: Hrs of Operation 7AM-4PM (M-F) 7:30AM-4:30PM M-F 7:30AM-4:30PM M-F

Notice of Pick up M-F 24/Hrs 24/Hrs 24/Hrs
Saturday 48 Hrs Notice Call for availability 24 Hours 

Location 2040 Barrett Drive 2240 Avon Industrrial Dr 12345 23 Mile Rd
Troy, MI  Roch Hills, MI Shelby Twp, MI

Miles 5.1 6 11.39
Net 30 Days upon Net 30 Days upon

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 receipt of invoice receipt of invoice
Qty of 1 or 

MINIMUM ORDER: None 1 $50

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Bulk Tack only avail at Site location 
4875 Bald Mt Rd, Auburn Shelby Twp, MI

Hills, MI, 50 Gal Min
ALL OR NONE AWARD: Y or N N Y N

PROPOSAL:  One-Year Requirements of Asphalt Paving Materials - Hot Patch
with an Option to Renew for One Additional Year

ATTEST:
Marina Basta-Farouk HIGHLIGHTED ITEMS DENOTES LOW BIDDERS
Jeff Biegler 
Diane Fisher
Julie Hamilton 

___________________________
Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB
Purchasing Director

G:\ Asphalt Paving Materials-Hot ITB-COT 11-11



bartholotl
Text Box
J-04b







 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
Date:               April 25, 2011              
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
Subject: Bid Waiver: Expansion of Vehicle Exhaust Collection Systems at Fire Stations 3 and 4 
 
 
Background 
 
Occupational health research has established a link between diesel engine emissions and cancer.  
MIOSHA standards require that firefighter exposure to diesel exhaust emissions within enclosed 
facilities be controlled. Over the past 15 years, Troy has installed “Plymovent” brand exhaust 
extraction systems in all Troy fire stations.  During the past two years, several fire apparatus have 
been redeployed from one fire station or the training center to other fire stations due to operational 
requirements of the fire department.  These relocations require that the exhaust collection systems at 
fire stations 3 and 4 be expanded to accommodate these relocated apparatus.  The Plymovent 
system is a proprietary system which requires that expansion be completed using original 
manufacturer parts and factory authorized personnel.  Hastings Air Energy Control is the only vendor 
authorized to service and install Plymovent equipment in the state of Michigan. 
 
Recommendation 
 
City management requests authorization to purchase the necessary materials and labor to expand 
the Plymovent Vehicle Exhaust System at Fire stations 3 and 4 from Hastings Air Energy Control, the 
authorized dealer and sole provider in Michigan for an estimated total cost of $11,600.00. 
 
Fund Availability 
 
Funds are available in the 2010/11Fire Halls Capital Budget for Buildings and Improvements. 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format/ Waiver - VehicleExhaustFD 04.11.doc 
 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-05

















 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:             April 29, 2011              
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
  Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative 
 
Subject: Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main from First Industrial  
  Development Services, Inc. – Sidwell #88-20-35-201-067 
 
 
Background 
 
As part of the redevelopment of a property located on Chicago Road in Section 35, the Engineering 
department has received a permanent easement for water main from First Industrial Development 
Services, Inc., owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-35-201-067. 
 
The format and content of this easement is consistent with easements previously accepted by City 
Council. The consideration amount on this document is $1.00. 
 
Recommendation 
 
City Management recommends that City Council accept the attached easement, consistent with our 
policy of accepting easements for development and improvement purposes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LAF/G\MEMOSTOMAYORANDCC\FirstAmericanwatermainesmt.doc 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-06



 
 
Date May 6, 2011 

 
TO: Mayor Schilling and City Council 

 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

SUBJECT: Proposed Millage Questions Requested by Mayor Schilling 
  
 
Mayor Schilling requested that two millage questions be advanced to City Council for dedicated 
Library Millage and Dedicated Road Maintenance and Snow Plowing Millage Proposals. The 
proposed language is attached, but has not been reviewed by the City Attorney’s office 
 
Please note that one mill is worth about four million dollars. Staff will have estimates. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  IITTEEMM  

bartholotl
Text Box
L-01



 
CITY OF TROY PUBLIC LIBRARY GENERAL OPERATING MILLAGE PROPOSAL 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL WOULD BE  AUTHORIZED TO LEVY UP TO ___ MILLS WITH THE 
SUCCESSFUL PASSAGE OF THE FOLLOWING QUESTION: 
 
Shall the City of Troy levy new additional millage of up to ___ mills against all taxable property 
for a ____-year period of time, 2011 through _____, for public library general operating 
purposes? ___ mills are equal to $_____ on each $1, 000.00 of taxable value. If approved, the 
additional millage levied will raise approximatel y $_____________ the first year it is levied. The 
millage will be levied on the Winter Tax Bill Annually. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 
CITY OF TROY GENERAL OPERATING MILLAGE – ROAD MAINTENANCE AND SNOW 
PLOWING PROPOSAL 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL WOULD BE  AUTHORIZED TO LEVY UP TO ___ MILLS WITH THE 
SUCCESSFUL PASSAGE OF THE FOLLOWING QUESTION: 
 
Shall the City of Troy levy new additional millage of up to ___ mills against all taxable property 
for a _____-year period of ti me, 2011 through _____, for general operating millage - road 
maintenance-and snow plowing purposes? ___ mills are equal to $_____ on each $1,000.00 of 
taxable value. If approved, the additional  millage levied will raise approximately 
$_____________ the first year it is levied. The millage will be levied on the Winter Tax Bill 
Annually. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 



Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy  City Council hereby APPROVES for placement on the 
___________, 2011 Election, the following ballot questions:  
 
a) Approval of City of Troy Public Library Dedicated General Operation Millage Proposal 

as Requested by Mayor Schilling 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL WOULD BE AUTHORIZED TO LEVY UP TO ___ MILLS WITH 
THE SUCCESSFUL PASSAGE OF THE FOLLOWING QUESTION: 

 
Shall the City of Troy levy new additional millage of up to ___ mills 
against all taxable property for a ____-year period of time, 2011 through 
_____, for public library general operating purposes? ___ mills are equal 
to $_____ on each $1,000.00 of taxable value. If approved, the additional 
millage levied will raise approximately $_____________ the first year it is 
levied. The millage will be levied on the Winter Tax Bill Annually. 
 
Yes ____ No ______ 

 
b) Approval of City of Tr oy Road Maintenance and Snow Plowing Dedicated General 

Operation Millage Proposal as Requested by Mayor Schilling 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL WOULD BE AUTHORIZED TO LEVY UP TO ___ MILLS WITH 
THE SUCCESSFUL PASSAGE OF THE FOLLOWING QUESTION: 

 
Shall the City of Troy levy new additional millage of up to ___ mills 
against all taxable property for a _____-year period of time, 2011 through 
_____, for general operating millage - road maintenance-and snow 
plowing purposes? ___ mills are equal to $_____ on each $1,000.00 of 
taxable value. If approved, the additional millage levied will raise 
approximately $_____________ the first year it is levied. The millage will 
be levied on the Winter Tax Bill Annually. 
 
Yes ____ No ______ 

 
Yes: 
No: 



bartholotl
Text Box
N-01a





bartholotl
Text Box
N-01b







bartholotl
Text Box
N-01c







bartholotl
Text Box
N-01d







BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- DRAFT  MARCH 15, 2011 

1 
 

The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting was called to order by Chair Lambert at 7:30 p.m. on 
March 15, 2011, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall.  
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present 
Michael Bartnik 
Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
William Fisher 
David Lambert 
Thomas Strat 
 
Also Present 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Recording Secretary Stuart Filler  
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Resolution #BZA 2011-03-15 
Moved by Clark 
Seconded by Fisher 
 
MOVED, To approve the February 15, 2011, Regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 6-0 

 
3. HEARING OF CASES   

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, MONSIGNOR ZOUHAIR TOMA KAJBOU, 2442 E. BIG 
BEAVER ROAD, ST. JOSEPH CHALDEAN CATHOLIC CHURCH - In order to 
construct an addition to the church and a new driveway: 1) An 8 foot variance 
from the requirement that the addition be set back 50 feet from the west property 
line; 2) a 43 f oot variance from the requirement that the proposed driveway be 
set back at least 50 feet from the west property line; and 3) a variance from the 
requirement that a landscaped berm be provided between the proposed driveway 
and the west property line.  

 
ORDINANCE SECTIONS: 1), 2), and 3: 10.30.04 (B), 10.30.04 (E), 10.30.04 (F) 
 
Mr. Evans said the appellant has asked to postpone this Item because only six 
Board members are present tonight. Deputy City Attorney Forsyth recommended 
also postponing consideration of any comment until then. 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-01e



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- DRAFT  MARCH 15, 2011 
 

2 
 

 
 
Resolution #BZA 2011-03-16 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Bartnik 
 
MOVED, To postpone action on the case to the April 19, 2011, meeting. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
The Board discussed whether to allow partial discussion tonight, with no actual 
hearing and the appellants absent. 
 
Deputy City Attorney Forsyth said under Roberts Rules, a pos tponement 
postpones everything; but someone might need to speak who is unable to speak 
at a future time; that would be a matter of necessity.  
 
Chair Lambert established, by a show of hands, that five members of the public 
present to hear this case believe they could attend next month’s meeting. Mr. 
Evans advised said that parties who cannot attend next month’s meeting can 
forward comments to the Board via e-mail.  Mr. Forsyth advised there would be 
no additional public hearing notices. 
 
Further discussion ensued.  Mr. Courtney called the previous question. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
  
Yes:  Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Fisher, Lambert 
No: Strat 
 
MOTION CARRIED 5-1  

 
 

A. VARIANCE REQUEST, HARRY KWON, 38921 DEQUINDRE - A variance from 
the requirement that the required obscuring wall along the west property line be 
constructed of common or face brick, or of poured or precast masonry or 
decorative block, in order to maintain the existing wood fence. 

 
ORDINANCE SECTION: 39.10.03 
 
Mr. Evans presented the facts, visuals and requested variance. The Board 
allowed a 35 foot segment of 6 foot wooden fence to substitute for a portion of 
the required screen wall in 2004, renewed in 2005 for three years, and again in 
2008. A photo shows the white wood segment wood fence between two 
segments of presumed gray concrete masonry; the wood portion might be a few 
inches taller than the masonry. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- DRAFT  MARCH 15, 2011 
 

3 
 

Mr. Courtney said the relief seems to be because of a 20 foot wide pipeline 
easement; Mr. Evans confirmed for Mr. Bartnik that the initial approval was 
denied, and then allowed on reconsideration. 
 
Appellant Harry Kwon said he has applied for a permanent variance instead of 
periodic renewals of the relief because the wooden portion of the screening is 
due to the unavoidable necessity created by the 1940s private easement to Sun 
Oil Company. The appellant explained in some detail how, if the periodic 
renewals are inevitable, a v ariance will save wasted time and expense for all 
concerned. 
 
The appellant added that the compliant masonry portion is prison like and 
unpleasing, both when compared to the foot white wooden fence portion--shown 
as 35 feet in length in previous Board minutes--and when compared to how it 
might look if painted to be more attractive. 
 
The appellant said the original and existing arrangement was a compromise 
deemed necessary by the City’s Legal Department and satisfactory to the City 
and to Sunoco, to all concerned and arises out of the easement document and 
an Oakland County deed s howing the County owns a r ight of way across his 
property, which incorporate any “permanent structure” above the easement. The 
wood portion is removable, you can swing it out, and the brick or concrete portion 
is “permanent.” The then City Attorney coordinated the resolution of the issues. 
 
Mr. Courtney questioned why the wood portion, if necessary, should not be 
limited to the approximately 20 foot portion transected by the 20 foot easement. 
Board members and staff discussed the definition of “permanent structure” and 
alternatives to wood fencing like demountable masonry or the “fence footer” 
solution Chair Lambert said one neighbor suggested.  
 
Assistant City Attorney Forsyth noted that the application does not contain copies 
of the controlling agreement referred to by the applicant.   
 
Mr. Bartnik said the pipeline goes under the road and under buildings, asking 
what happens to the easement at 2950 Dequindre and 3960 Wardlow, etc. Mr. 
Strat agrees it goes under Wattles. 
 
The appellant said the easement holder’s assertion of its right involves their 
catching up on their enforcement after periods of inattention. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one w as present to speak.  C hair Lambert noted there are 3 l etters from 
neighbors opposed to the request. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- DRAFT  MARCH 15, 2011 
 

4 
 

Mr. Courtney said the temporary extensions of the relief are a hedge against the 
easement holder at some point changing their mind, and said that as a 
representative of the citizens, acknowledging how the appellant feels about the 
aesthetics of the masonry, he would need to see documentation that gives full 
confirmation to the assumptions and conclusions that have been cited regarding 
the pipeline, etc. 
 
Chair Lambert asked how a developer could get authorization put houses over 
the pipeline easement. Mr. Forsyth said the City’s situation with regard to the 
private easement is in some ways analogous to the City’s situation with regard to 
the covenants of private homeowner associations.  
 
Mr. Strat said title companies and title searches are part of the process, with 
attendant liability for undiscovered existing easements and agreed that the Board 
lacks the information to justify a per manent variance for what some affected 
people might regard as unsightly. The Board needs to see the older easement 
and related document and the City’s own record. 
 
Deputy City Attorney Forsyth said he w ould research, verifying the City’s due 
diligence and repeating some of the work of six years ago if the Board needs it. 
On the face of it, an ordinance cannot override a private easement unless there 
is a public benefit. The current relief could go on year by year forever. 
 
The appellant said in earlier discussions, Sun Oil said to get rid of the entire brick 
wall, not just a segment. Mr. Bartnik said the wall should be able to extend up to 
the easement without a r eason not to. The appellant said the spirit of the 
ordinance is to provide protection to the residences abutting a commercial entity. 
 
Chair Lambert suggested the appellant meet with the neighbors affected by the 
screen wall and fence to find out what they could live with, and referred to the 
letter one of them sent that contains suggestions. 
 
Resolution #BZA 2011-03-17 
Moved by Clark 
Seconded by Courtney 
 
MOVED, To postpone the hearing to April 19, 2011, for the petitioner to provide 
more information. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 6-0 

 
C. VARIANCE REQUEST, MINAL GADA AND ASHISH MANEK, 4820 

LIVERNOIS - In order to split the subject parcel into 3 separate parcels, a 15 foot 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- DRAFT  MARCH 15, 2011 
 

5 
 

variance to the required 100 foot lot width requirement for 2 o f the proposed 
parcels.  

 
ORDINANCE SECTION: 39.10.02 
 
Mr. Evans presented the facts, visuals and the requested variance.  
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if staff confirmed the information in the spreadsheet analysis 
provided by the applicant; Mr. Evans advised they did not, but could if desired by 
the Board.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the site could be split into two lots without a variance; Mr. 
Evans confirmed it could. 
 
Chair Lambert asked whether the property, or the proposed southern 170 feet, is 
too small for a condo plan. 
 
The appellants, Ms. Gada and Mr. Manek, were accompanied by Bob Lind of 
Urban Land Consultants LLC., 8800 23 M ile Rd Shelby Township. Appellant 
Manek said he moved to Troy in 2005 and bought the unique property in 2007 
and that the proposed two southern lots resulting from a division into three meet 
the square footage and other requirements except for the 15 foot lot width deficit. 
It was part of a farm subdivided in two phases in the 1950s, when requirements 
were different and lots were larger, exceeding zoning requirements. Water and 
sewer enabled the homebuilding in the 1980s. 
 
The existing farmhouse was built in 1901; its gravel driveway some 35 feet to the 
south turns north from the proposed middle lot. 
 
The appellant said the land division would be n o detriment to the surrounding 
area, with trees and brush to the east and more traditional, 1990s platted homes 
across Livernois. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked whether there is enough square footage for site condos. Mr. 
Lind said they worked with City staff and looked at different scenarios. This one 
is the simplest; all would require variances, and condos would not be feasible. 
Appellant Manek thanked Mr. Evans and staff for their help. 
 
In response to a question by Mr. Bartnik, the applicant attempted to clarify the lot 
frontage on nearby properties across Livernois Road. 
 
Mr. Strat asked about the existing storage shed on the property, in what would be 
the center lot, and appellant Manek said they will move it to comply with the 
code. Mr. Strat said a site condominium appears possible and he feels would 
make more sense. It could use the existing curb cut and split the existing drive 
with a t urnaround. This would work and al low two homes without a v ariance, 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- DRAFT  MARCH 15, 2011 
 

6 
 

even if a cul de sac, which the appellants have considered and rejected, would 
not. 
 
Mr. Courtney agreed as that condominiums might be a viable alternative.  
Chair Lambert asked about the rendering showing two new homes and the 
gambrel roof farmhouse, intent to avoid more curb cuts, and agreed with as to 
the need to consider alternatives such as site condominiums. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED  
 
No one was present to speak.  Chair Lambert noted there was no written 
correspondence from the public.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution #BZA 2011-03-17 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Bartnik 
 
MOVED, To postpone the hearing to April 19, 2011, so that the appellants can 
research the viability of alternatives, including a condominium plan alternative. 
 
Discussion of the motion on the floor. 
 
Chair Lambert gave appellant Manek leave to speak further, and the appellant 
asked whether Board members are suggesting consideration of a s ite condo 
served by the existing drive. Mr. Strat said the configuration is at the appellant’s 
discretion. 
 
The appellant said that, eight months ago, Planning said for some reason they 
could not do condos; he forgets the details, but it included two units as well as 
four; they were against rezoning. Chair Lambert said if there is a firm denial from 
Planning, the Board will take up the lot split proposal.  
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 6-0 
 

4. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

Mr. Evans said Board members have the latest information from the Michigan Chapter 
of the American Planning Association. 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- DRAFT  MARCH 15, 2011 
 

7 
 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
 

Chair Lambert thanked Assistant City Attorney Forsyth for his service with the City of 
Troy and wished him well in his new endeavor; the Board has enjoyed working with him 
this year. His departure is the City’s loss. Mr. Strat concurred. Assistant City Attorney 
Forsyth said he has enjoyed working here in various capacities.  
 
In response to Mr. Strat’s brief comment on agenda item 3B, Assistant City Attorney 
Forsyth reminded the Board that it postponed consideration of the item to next month. 

 
7. ADJOURNMENT 
 

The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:58 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
____________________________________ 
David Lambert, Chair        /sf 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MARCH 22, 2011 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on March 22, 2011 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds  Robert M. Schultz 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived at 7:35 p.m.) 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-03-013 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes:  All present (7) 
Absent: Schultz, Vleck (arrived at 7:35 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2011-03-014 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the March 8, 2011 Regular meeting as 
prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Schultz, Vleck (arrived at 7:35 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MARCH 22, 2011 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Strat presented the BZA report.  He provided summaries of the February 15, 2011 
and March 15, 2011 Board of Zoning Appeals meetings. 

 
 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant presented a brief report of the March DDA meeting. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant presented the Planning and Zoning report.  H e indicated that based on 
informal discussions with potential applicants, it appeared that a moderate spike in 
development applications was forthcoming. 

 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 
8. OUTDOOR SEATING AREA – The Capital Grille, Somerset Collection, North side 

of Big Beaver, east of Coolidge (Unit Q123, 2800 W. Big Beaver), Section 20, 
Currently Zoned B-2 General Business (Controlled by Consent Judgment) 
 
Mr. Savidant summarized the application, which requires approval by City 
Council.  There was general support of the proposed outdoor seating area. 
 
Resolution #2011-03-015 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends that Special 
Use Approval for the proposed Capital Grille outdoor seating area, located on the 
north side of Big Beaver, east of Coolidge (Unit Q123, 2800 W. Big Beaver), 
Section 20, Currently Zoned B-2 General Business (Controlled by Consent 
Judgment), be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MARCH 22, 2011 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 236) – Proposed 
Draft Zoning Ordinance and M ap Regulating the Development and Use of Land, 
which Ordinance, if Adopted, will Repeal and R eplace the Existing Zoning 
Ordinance, Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
 
Mr. Branigan summarized the draft document, dated March 18, 2011.  This draft 
contained all the revised formatting and t ext edits from the workshop, the public 
hearing, the Planning Commission and DDA input, Staff and Consultant changes, 
etc. made since the February 4 draft.  General discussion followed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-03-016 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission adopted the City of Troy Master Plan on 
October 14, 2008; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Zoning Ordinance is the most important tool for implementing the 
Master Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, The existing City of Troy Zoning Ordinance is approaching fifty years 
old, and has been amended two hundred forty- two times; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City undertook a c ollaborative effort between the Planning 
Department and Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. to comprehensively rewrite the 
Zoning Ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission discussed the proposed Zoning Ordinance 
at over thirty public meetings, including a Zoning Ordinance Workshop held on 
March 2, 2011 and a Public Hearing held on March 8, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Zoning Ordinance creates an Environment of Investment 
in the City by expanding the development and use potential of many non-residential 
properties; and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Zoning Ordinance preserves and protects single-family 
residential neighborhoods from incompatible uses. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby supports 
the proposed City of Troy Zoning Ordinance and recommends adoption of the 
proposed Zoning Ordinance by City Council.  
 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Maxwell, Sanzica, Strat, Tagle, Ullmann 
No: Vleck 
Absent: Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MARCH 22, 2011 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Vleck stated he is supportive of 98% of the document.  H is no vote was 
intended to put City Council on not ice that there were some provisions in the 
proposed document that were more restrictive than the existing Zoning Ordinance; 
for example, parking of commercial vehicles in residential districts.  O ther than a 
few provisions, he supports the draft document. 

 
 

10. BIG BEAVER DESIGN GUIDELINES 
 

Zak Branigan summarized the document, which had been reviewed previously by 
the Planning Commission.  There was general discussion of the document. 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-03-017 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
WHEREAS, The Downtown Development Authority (DDA) commissioned the 
development of Big Beaver Design Standards to encourage the continued vitality of 
the Big Beaver Corridor as a regional destination point and a world class boulevard; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, The Big Beaver Design Guidelines were adopted by the Downtown 
Development Authority on January 19, 2011. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Big Beaver Design Guidelines are 
hereby approved by the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
There was general Planning Commission discussion. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MARCH 22, 2011 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

 

 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Michael W. Hutson, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2011 PC Minutes\Final\03-22-11 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT APRIL 12, 2011 
  
 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Vice Chair 
Maxwell at 7:30 p.m. on April 12, 2011, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent Philip Sanzica 
Mark Maxwell Lon M. Ullmann 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-04-018 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Sanzica, Ullmann 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-04-019 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the March 22, 2011 Special/Study meeting as 
prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Sanzica, Ullmann 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-01g



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT APRIL 12, 2011 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 967) – Proposed Gaucho 

Brazilian Steakhouse, 3635 R ochester Road, West Side of Rochester between 
Troywood and Colebrook, Section 22, Currently Zoned B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-04-020 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the item be t abled or postponed until such time as a complete 
preliminary site plan package has been turned over to the Planning Department and 
both the Planning Consultant and the Planning Commission have had time to review it.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Sanzica, Ullmann 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

7. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 

 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       
Mark Maxwell, Vice Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2011 PC Minutes\Draft\04-12-11 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL APRIL 12, 2011 
  
 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Vice Chair 
Maxwell at 7:30 p.m. on April 12, 2011, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent Philip Sanzica 
Mark Maxwell Lon M. Ullmann 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-04-018 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Sanzica, Ullmann 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-04-019 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the March 22, 2011 Special/Study meeting as 
prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Sanzica, Ullmann 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-01h



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL APRIL 12, 2011 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 967) – Proposed Gaucho 

Brazilian Steakhouse, 3635 R ochester Road, West Side of Rochester between 
Troywood and Colebrook, Section 22, Currently Zoned B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-04-020 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the item be t abled or postponed until such time as a complete 
preliminary site plan package has been turned over to the Planning Department and 
both the Planning Consultant and the Planning Commission have had time to review it.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Hutson, Sanzica, Ullmann 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

7. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 

 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       
Mark Maxwell, Vice Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2011 PC Minutes\Final\04-12-11 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 



bartholotl
Text Box
N-02































 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Date:     5/2/2011                         
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
  
Subject: RCOC snow and ice control contract expense report 5/1/11 
 
 
Background 
 
When the RCOC snow and ice control contract was approved by city council, city staff was requested 
to provide a monthly report on corresponding expenditures. 
 
Final Report 
 
The expenditures for snow and ice control on county roads under the RCOC contract are as follows. 
 
5/2/11 
Labor   $ 119,818  33% 
Salt   $ 162,848  45% 
Equipment  $   81,421  22% 
Total   $ 364,087  100 % 
 
 
This expense is 146% of the total RCOC contract ($249,691). The expenditure to date is 92% of the 
total budgeted for snow and ice control for county roads in 2010/11 budget. 
 
 
As of 5/1/2011 snow fall amounts have accumulated 62 inches. The annual average for Southeast 
Oakland County is 39 inches. We have received 158% of an average year snowfall to date.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:/Richnak Agenda Items–5.9.11 – RPT – RCOC snow and ice control contract expense report 5/1/11 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-02b



 

 

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:              April 26, 2011               
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
 
Subject: 2010 Fire Department Annual Report     
 
 
Due to resource constraints, the fire department has redesigned our annual report format.  The 
new format consists of a two page summary document that provides a high level overview of the 
previous year’s activity compared to the preceding year and a more detailed six page document 
that provides more specific information.  
 
Key trends in 2010 include: 
 

• There were no civilian or firefighter deaths. 
• Overall fire department responses increased by over 17%. 
• Structure fires decreased by 8% while overall fires increased by 51%. 
• Fire loss increased by 144% due to several high loss structure fires. 
• Volunteer firefighter staffing levels remain stable. 

 
Both the 2010 summary report and the 2010 detailed report will be placed on the city website in 
order to provide access to the information.  If you have any questions or comments, please 
contact me.  

bartholotl
Text Box
N-02c



TROY FIRE DEPARTMENT
ANNUAL REPORT SUMMARY

2010

1

Category Count Percent Previous Year Change

Total Fire Incidents 170 17.28% 156 8.97%
Total Non Fire Incidents 814 82.72% 683 19.18%
Total Incidents 984 100.00% 839 17.28%

Fire Incidents Count Percent Previous Year Change

Structure Fires 68 40.00% 74 -8.11%
Other Fires 102 60.00% 38 168.42%
Total Fire Incidents 170 100.00% 112 51.79%

Structure Fires by Occupancy Count Percent Previous Year Change

Commercial Buildings 31 45.59% 39 -20.51%
Single Family Dwelling 37 54.41% 35 5.71%
Total Occupancies 68 100.00% 74

Structure Fire Causes Count Percent Previous Year Change

Intentional 4 5.88% 4 0.00%
Accidental/Unintentional 36 52.94% 57 -36.84%
Undetermined 28 41.18% 13 115.38%
Total Causes 68 58.82% 74

Total Casualties Number Percent Previous Year Change

Civilian Injury 3 18.75% 2 50.00%
Civilian Death 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Firefighter Injury 13 81.25% 10 30.00%
Firefighter Death 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Total Casualties 16 100.00% 12

Total Estimated Fire Loss Amount Percent Previous Year Change

Structure Value * $90,960,680.00 100.00% $69,719,009.00 30.47%
Property Loss $3,288,183.00 3.61% $1,401,795.00 134.57%
Contents Loss $2,590,626.00 2.85% $1,002,560.00 158.40%
Total Loss $5,878,809.00 6.46% $2,404,355.00 144.51%
Total Endangered/Saved $85,081,871.00 93.54% $67,314,654.00 26.39%

* Value of structures/property involved



TROY FIRE DEPARTMENT
ANNUAL REPORT SUMMARY

2010

2

Response Time Analysis **

Emergency Responses Count Cumulative Response Percent Cumulative

0 - 5 Minutes 137 137 22.99% 22.99%
6 - 10 Minutes 379 516 63.59% 86.58%
10 + Minutes 80 596 13.42% 100.00%
Total Emergency Responses 596 60.57% of total responses
Total Responses 984

** Response Time Analysis as recorded by the dispatch center includes call processing time; turnout time; and travel time

Staffing

5 Year Average (2006-2010) Total Change Cumulative

Station 172.6 -0.42% -2.10%
Administration 12.2 -3.48% -6.82%

2 Year Average (2009-2010) Total Change Cumulative

Station 168.5 -0.75% -4.68%
Administration 11.5 -4.55% -12.88%

Activities Count Percent Previous Year Change

Operations Activity 1,562 9.49% 1,452 7.58%
Fire Prevention Activity 14,892 90.51% 24,775 -39.89%
Total Activities 16,454 100.00% 26,227 -32.32%

Hours Count Percent Previous Year Change

Fire Prevention Hours *** 5,721.50 22.33% 7,802.97 -26.68%
Operations Hours **** 19,904.00 77.67% 19,247.00 3.41%
Total Hours 25,625.50 100.00% 27,049.97 -23.26%

*** Career Staff-Hours Only
**** Department Man-Hours. Includes Volunteer & Career Staff.



TROY FIRE DEPARTMENT
ANNUAL REPORT

2010

1

Category Count Percent of Total Incidents Previous Year Change

Total Fire Incidents 170 17.28% 156 8.97%
Total Non Fire Incidents 814 82.72% 683 19.18%
Total Incidents 984 100.00% 839 17.28%

Fire Incidents Count Percent of Total Fires Previous Year Change

Structure Fires 68 40.00% 74 -8.11%
Vehicle Fires 51 30.00% 38 34.21%
Grass Fires 16 9.41% 9 77.78%
Refuse Fires 25 14.71% 19 31.58%
Other Fires 10 5.88% 16 -37.50%
Total Fire Incidents 170 100.00% 156 8.97%

Non Fire Incidents Count Percent of Total Non Fires Previous Year Change

Overpressure/Explosion 2 0.25% 3 -33.33%
Rescues/Extrications 24 2.95% 36 -33.33%
Hazardous Conditions * 155 19.04% 103 50.49%
Public Service 21 2.58% 23 -8.70%
Good Intent ** 170 20.88% 172 -1.16%
False Alarms 262 32.19% 213 23.00%
System Malfunctions 171 21.01% 130 31.54%
Weather Standby 8 0.98% 2 300.00%
Other Non Fire 1 0.12% 1 0.00%
Total Non Fire Incidents 814 100.00% 683 19.18%

* Includes spills or leaks with no fire; excess heat; arcing wires; and chemical emergencies
** Includes smoke scares; wrong locations; steam mistaken for smoke; and controlled burning



TROY FIRE DEPARTMENT
ANNUAL REPORT

2010

2

Structure Fires by Occupancy Count Percent of Structure Fires Previous Year Change

Public Assembly 1 1.47% 5 -80.00%
Institutional 2 2.94% 2 0.00%
Single Family Dwelling 37 54.41% 35 5.71%
Apartments 15 22.06% 14 7.14%
Motel/Hotel 0 0.00% 4 -100.00%
Stores/Sales 1 1.47% 4 -75.00%
Office 2 2.94% 4 -50.00%
Industrial 3 4.41% 2 50.00%
Storage 1 1.47% 1 0.00%
Other 6 8.82% 3 100.00%
Total Occupancies 68 74

Structure Fire Causes Count Percent of Structure Fires Previous Year Change

Intentional 4 5.88% 4 0.00%
Children Playing 1 1.47% 0 0.00%
Smoking 1 1.47% 3 -66.67%
Heating 3 4.41% 4 -25.00%
Cooking 14 20.59% 18 -22.22%
Electrical Distribution 2 2.94% 3 -33.33%
Appliances 4 5.88% 4 0.00%
Open Flame, Ember 5 7.35% 3 66.67%
Other Heat, Flame, Spark 2 2.94% 1 100.00%
Other Equipment 3 4.41% 1 200.00%
Natural 1 1.47% 1 0.00%
Undetermined 28 41.18% 12 133.33%
Total Causes 68 54



TROY FIRE DEPARTMENT
ANNUAL REPORT

2010

3

Total Casualties Number Percent Previous Year Change

Civilian Injury 3 18.75% 2 50.00%
Civilian Death 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Firefighter Injury 13 81.25% 10 30.00%
Firefighter Death 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Total Casualties 16 100.00% 12

Total Estimated Fire Loss Amount Percent Previous Year Change

Structure Value * $90,960,680.00 100.00% $69,719,009.00 30.47%
Property Loss $3,288,183.00 3.61% $1,401,795.00 134.57%
Contents Loss $2,590,626.00 2.85% $1,002,560.00 158.40%
Total Loss $5,878,809.00 6.46% $2,404,355.00 144.51%
Total Endangered/Saved $85,081,871.00 93.54% $67,314,654.00 26.39%

* Value of structures/property involved

Response Time Analysis **
Cumulative Cumulative

Emergency Responses Count Response Percent Percent

0 - 1 Minute 4 4 0.67% 0.67%
1 - 2 Minutes 4 8 0.67% 1.34%
2 - 3 Minutes 21 29 3.52% 4.86%
3 - 4 Minutes 39 68 6.54% 11.40%
4 - 5 Minutes 69 137 11.58% 22.98%
5 - 6 Minutes 96 233 16.11% 39.09%
6 - 7 Minutes 94 327 15.77% 54.86%
7 - 8 Minutes 77 404 12.92% 67.78%
8 - 9 Minutes 62 466 10.40% 78.18%
9 - 10 Minutes 50 516 8.39% 86.57%
10 + Minutes 80 596 13.42% 99.99%
Total Emergency Responses 596 60.57% of total responses
Total Responses 984

** Response Time Analysis as recorded by the dispatch center includes call processing time; turnout time; and travel time



TROY FIRE DEPARTMENT
ANNUAL REPORT

2010

4

Activities Count Percent Previous Year Change

Fire Station Service Requests 909 58.19% 834 8.99%
Fire Investigations 37 2.37% 38 -2.63%
In-Service Training Provided 473 30.28% 473 0.00%
Specialty Team Training Provided 50 3.20% 43 16.28%
Fire Academy Training Provided 93 5.95% 64 45.31%
Subtotal 1,562 100.00% 1,452 7.58%

Plans Reviewed 693 4.72% 564 22.87%
Permits Issued 414 2.82% 346 19.65%
Inspections 2,412 16.44% 2,745 -12.13%
Violations Issued 1,318 8.98% 2,174 -39.37%
Violations Cleared 686 4.67% 1,444 -52.49%
Hydrant Flow Tests Conducted 24 0.16% 23 4.35%
Public Education Programs 155 1.06% 232 -33.19%
Public Education Participants 7,313 49.84% 8,351 -12.43%
HAPIS Computer Entries 1,027 7.00% 8,365 -87.72%
Alarms Registered * 632 4.31% N/A N/A
Subtotal 14,674 100.00% 24,244 -39.47%

Total Activities 16,236 24,775 -34.47%

* Assumed this role from the police department in 2010. 

Activity Hours Count Percent Previous Year Change

Operations Hours ** 19,904.00 77.67% 19,247.00 3.41%
Fire Prevention Hours *** 5,721.50 22.33% 7,802.97 -26.68%
Total Hours 25,625.50 100.00% 27,049.97 -23.26%

** Department Man-Hours. Includes Volunteer & Career Staff.
*** Career Staff-Hours Only



TROY FIRE DEPARTMENT
ANNUAL REPORT

2010

5

Staffing

Volunteer Station 1 Station 2 Station 3 Station 4 Station 5 Station 6 Total Change Cumulative

2006 30 30 30 25 31 30 176 0.00% 0.00%
2007 28 28 30 26 32 31 175 -0.57% -0.57%
2008 29 30 29 24 31 32 175 0.00% -0.57%
2009 29 27 28 24 31 25 164 -6.71% -7.28%
2010 29 27 29 32 30 26 173 5.20% -2.08%

5 Yr. Avg. 29.0 28.4 29.2 26.2 31.0 28.8 172.6 -0.42% -2.10%
2 Yr. Avg. 29.0 27.0 28.5 28.0 30.5 25.5 168.5 -0.75% -4.68%

Career Chief Assistant Chief Staff Lieutenant Staff Technician Total Change Cumulative 

2006 1 2 10 0 13 0.00% 0.00%
2007 1 2 9 1 13 0.00% 0.00%
2008 1 2 7 2 12 -8.33% -8.33%
2009 1 2 6 3 12 0.00% -8.33%
2010 1 2 6 2 11 -9.09% -17.42%

5 Yr. Avg. 1.0 2.0 7.6 1.6 12.2 -3.48% -6.82%
2 Yr. Avg. 1.0 2.0 6.0 2.5 11.5 -4.55% -12.88%



TROY FIRE DEPARTMENT
ANNUAL REPORT

2010

6

Supplemental

Valid Alarm Activations Count Percent of Total Incidents Previous Year Change

Cooking 19 1.93% 24 -20.83%
Fire 4 0.41% 3 33.33%
Freon Leak 2 0.20% 0 200.00%
Overheat 3 0.30% 6 -50.00%
Smoke 3 0.30% 2 50.00%
Total Valid Alarms 31 3.15% 35 -11.43%

False Alarm Activations Count Percent  of False Alarms Previous Year Change

Unintentional 257 26.12% 193 33.16%
Malfunction 171 17.38% 131 30.53%
Other 5 0.51% 19 -73.68%
Malicious 0 0.00% 2 -100.00%
Total False Alarms 433 44.00% of Total Incidents 343 26.24%

Accomplishments Count Cost

Purchased / placed in service
new pumpers. 2 $980,536.00 Total
Purchased / placed in service 
new personal protective equipment 
with FEMA Fire Act Grant funds. 173 $144,540.00 Total



bartholotl
Text Box
N-02d











bartholotl
Text Box
N-04a







bartholotl
Text Box
N-05






	AGENDA: May 9, 2011
	COVER MEMO
	VISION STATEMENT & GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 No Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1  No Postponed Items

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled
	I-3 Request for Closed Session:
	I-4 Interlocal Agreement with the City of Sterling Heights and US Department of Homeland Security – ICE for Use of Gun Range
	I-5 Troy City Code Chapter 93 Amendments - Correction
	I-6 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Community Center Catering
	I-7 Rescind Bid Award/Re-Award Contract – Aggregates
	I-8 Rescind Bid Award/Re-Award Contract - Custodial Supplies

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders - Asphalt
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership Dues – Michigan Municipal League (MML)

	J-5 Bid Waiver: Expansion of Vehicle Exhaust Collection Systems at Fire Stations 3 and 4
	J-6 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main from First Industrial Development Services, Inc. – Sidwell #88-20-35-201-067

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time): None Submitted

	L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	L-1  Council Referrals:
	a) Proposed Millage Questions - Requested by Mayor Schilling


	M. COUNCIL COMMENTS
	M-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	N. REPORTS
	N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust-Final-January 12, 2011
	b) Traffic Committee-Final-January 19, 2011
	c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Final-March 9, 2011
	d) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-March 14, 2011
	e) Board of Zoning Appeals-Draft-March 15, 2011
	f) Planning Commission-Final-March 22, 2011
	g) Planning Commission-Draft-April 12, 2011
	h) Planning Commission-Final-April 12, 2011

	N-2 Department Reports:
	a) March 31, 2011 – Quarterly Financial Report
	b) RCOC Snow and Ice Control Contract Expense Report 5/01/2011
	c) 2010 Fire Department Annual Report
	d) 2011 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report

	N-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	a) No Letter and Card of Appreciation Submitted

	N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:
	a) Oakland County – Resolution Adopting the Department of Management and Budget 2011 Equalization Report

	N-5  David Smith v. Stopczynski

	O. STUDY ITEMS
	O-1  No Study Items Presented

	P. CLOSED SESSION:
	Troy v Safeway Acquisitions Company and Strategy for Labor Negotiations

	Q. ADJOURNMENT




